Public Document Pack

ENFIELD

Council

PLANNING COMMITTEE Contact: Jane Creer / Metin Halil
Committee Administrator
Direct : 020-8379-4093 / 4091

Wednesday, 4th February, 2015 at 7.30 pm Tel: 020-8379-1000
Venue: Conference Room, Ext: 4093 /4091

The Civic Centre, Silver Street, Fax: 020-8379-4455
Enfield, Middlesex, EN1 3XA Textphone: 020 8379 4419

E-mail: jane.creer@enfield.qgov.uk
metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk
Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk

MEMBERS

Councillors : Abdul Abdullahi, Lee Chamberlain, Dogan Delman, Christiana During,
Ahmet Hasan, Suna Hurman, Jansev Jemal, Derek Levy (Vice-Chair), Andy Milne,
Anne-Marie Pearce, George Savva MBE and Toby Simon (Chair)

N.B. Any member of the public interested in attending the meeting
should ensure that they arrive promptly at 7:15pm
Please note that if the capacity of the room is reached, entry may not be
permitted. Public seating will be available on a first come first served basis.

Involved parties may request to make a deputation to the Committee by
contacting the committee administrator before 12:00 noon on 3/02/15
AGENDA - PART 1

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Members of the Planning Committee are invited to identify any disclosable
pecuniary, other pecuniary or non pecuniary interests relevant to items on the

agenda.

3. MINUTES OF THE PLANNING PANEL - CHASE FARM HOSPITAL SITE
(Pages 1 - 14)

To receive the minutes of the Planning Panel meeting held on Wednesday 7
January 2015, for information only.



10.

11.

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION (REPORT NO. 165) (Pages 15 - 16)

To receive the covering report of the Assistant Director, Planning, Highways
& Transportation

14/04795/FUL - 1246 MOLLISON AVENUE, ENFIELD, EN3 7NJ (Pages 17
- 28)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions
WARD: Enfield Highway

14/02646/RE4 - DERBY ROAD, OFF KENNINGHALL ROAD, LONDON,
N18 2PA (Pages 29 - 38)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to accordance with Regulation 3 of
the Town & Country Planning General Regulations 1992 and Subject to
Conditions.

WARD: Edmonton Green

14/04449/FUL - 20-22 GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 6HT (Pages 39 - 52)

RECOMMENDATION: Planning Permission be Refused
WARD: Bowes

14/04222/HOU - 46 OLD PARK VIEW, ENFIELD, EN2 7EJ (Pages 53 - 62)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions
WARD: Highlands

14/03614/FUL - LAND ADJACENT TO 2 THE MALL, LONDON, N13 4AU.
(Pages 63 - 76)

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions
WARD: Southgate Green

P14-01733/PLA & P14-01735/ADV - 41 PICKETTS LOCK LANE, LONDON,
N9 OAS. (Pages 77 - 94)

RECOMMENDATION: Subiject to the referral of the application to the Greater
London Authority (GLA) and no objections being raised together with the
completion of the section 106 agreement regarding the issues set out above,
the Head of Development Management/Planning Decisions Manager be
authorised to GRANT planning permission subject to conditions.

WARD: Jubilee

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the
Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting



for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).

(There is no part 2 agenda)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

PLANNING PANEL - 7.1.2015

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING PANEL
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 7 JANUARY 2015

COUNCILLORS

PRESENT Toby Simon, Lee Chamberlain, Dogan Delman, Christiana
During, Jansev Jemal, Anne-Marie Pearce and George Savva
MBE

ABSENT

OFFICERS: Andy Higham (Head of Development Management), Sharon

Davidson (Planning Decisions Manager), David B Taylor
(Head of Traffic and Transportation) and Robert Singleton
(Planning Officer) Jane Creer (Secretary)

Also Attending:  Applicant (Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust)
representatives:

Andrew Panniker — Director of Capital and Estates
Steve Davies — TTP Consulting
Paul Burley — Montagu Evans
Nic Allen — PM Devereux
Fiona Jackson — Hospital Director, Chase Farm Hospital
Prof Steve Powis — Medical Director, Royal Free London
Maggie Robinson — Head of Property
Gary Barnes — Asst Director, Projects, LB Enfield

Ward Councillor: ClIr Glynis Vince (Highlands Ward)
And approximately 100 members of the public / interested
parties

1
OPENING

NOTED

1. Councillor Simon as Chair welcomed all attendees and introduced the
Panel Members.

2. The purpose of the meeting was to receive a briefing on the proposals, to
provide local residents and other interested parties the opportunity to ask
guestions about the application and for the applicants, officers and Panel
Members to listen to the reactions and comments. These views, and all the
written representations made, would be taken into account when the
application was determined by the Planning Committee.

3. This was not a decision-making meeting. A decision on the application
would be made by the full Planning Committee in February.



Page 2
PLANNING PANEL - 7.1.2015

2
OFFICERS' SUMMARY OF THE PLANNING ISSUES

NOTED

Andy Higham, (Enfield Council Head of Development Management)
introduced officers present and highlighted the following points:

1. This Planning Panel meeting was an important part of the consultation
process. Notes were being taken and would be appended to the report to
the Planning Committee.

2. This was an outline planning application, seeking to establish the
principles of the uses and development of the site. Matters of detailed
design and layout were not for consideration at this stage. The application
included details of the location within the site of the proposed new hospital,
school and residential development. Indicative plans had been provided to
demonstrate how the quantity of development proposed might be
accommodated on the site. There would be further consultation in future
on the detailed layout and form of development.

3. The Planning Committee could consider material planning issues. The key
issues included:
» The principle of the mix of uses proposed on the site and the
identification of future expansion space for hospital facilities.
» The principle of demolition of buildings on the site.
» The quantity, scale and height of development proposed.
+ Traffic implications.
* The principle of the points of vehicle and pedestrian access to the site.
» The provision of affordable housing and mix of residential development
proposed.
» The phasing of development and timescale of delivery and construction.
* The provision of temporary facilities for the new school within the Green
Belt.

4. The Committee could not consider matters of detailed design, or services
which the hospital would provide.

5. The consultation period would be extended by another week. If residents
had further comments, these should be sent to the Council by Thursday 15
January to be included in the report to Planning Committee.

3
PRESENTATION BY THE APPLICANT / AGENT

NOTED
Andrew Panniker (Director of Capital & Estates, The Royal Free London NHS

Foundation Trust) introduced representatives of the applicant present and set
out the proposals as follows:



Page 3

PLANNING PANEL - 7.1.2015

1. The application was submitted in November 2014 for outline planning
permission with reserved matters. This meeting was part of the
consultation process and they would be learning from comments made.

2. The Royal Free London acquired Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals in July
2014. They had then started consultation with local stakeholders for
delivery of a new Chase Farm Hospital. The clinical vision would be
delivered and the timescale was on track.

3. Phasing of development would be key, and all services currently on site at
Chase Farm Hospital would be maintained in operation.

4. The agreed Barnet, Enfield and Haringey (BEH) Clinical Strategy was
being delivered.

5. There had been lack of investment at Chase Farm Hospital and a number
of schemes developed and shelved over the years. Services were
provided in random buildings across the site at the moment. It was the
intention to deliver a new hospital fit for purpose in modern facilities and
give an improved patient experience, in an efficient and economic way.

6. The new hospital build was being enabled by the residential development.
Unless there was residential development they would be unable to
generate the funds to allow the hospital to be built.

7. The application was for a building of 32,000m2. The design needed
25,000mz2. This gave 7,000mz2 expansion space.

8. It had subsequently been realised that it would be more economical to
include facilities originally envisaged to be located in Highlands Wing in the
new building. Highlands Wing would stay on the land and would not be
sold.

9. There would be a lot of land retention at the hospital site, around 70%
spare capacity, which would allow for changes in policies or services that
might occur in future years.

10.There had been engagement with local residents and tenants on the site
and this would continue.

11.The timescale was set out. Subject to approval by Planning Committee in
February, the site would be cleared to allow building of the hospital, and
early 2015 would also see sale of parcels of land to allow the school to be
built and land where the current housing was. By the end of 2015 /
beginning of 2016 it would be possible to start the physical build of the new
hospital, subject to a further application to define design, scale and
massing. The full business case would be followed through with the Trust
Board and Department of Health. The new hospital would open in Spring
2018.



Page 4

PLANNING PANEL - 7.1.2015

12.Professor Steve Powis (Medical Director, Royal Free Hospital) added the
following points:
+ Clinicians wanted to deliver the best clinical care in the world and they
wanted to provide the best possible infrastructure and building to enable
that.
+ Chase Farm Hospital currently was not conducive to delivering that level
of care. The widely dispersed site was not a good or efficient way to run a
modern hospital. The buildings’ inside layout could not deliver 21
Century care. The state of repair of the buildings was poor and a new
build was required to deliver the best clinical care.
» The proposed hospital would have a huge positive impact on the level of
care delivered and on the experience of people attending and working at
the hospital.
» The services to be provided were those agreed in the BEH Clinical
Strategy. The list of services included:
- Inpatients
- Outpatients
- Elective surgery
- PITU (planned investigation and treatment unit)
- GP out of hours
- OPAU (older persons assessment unit)
- Theatres and recovery
- HDU (high dependency unit) endoscopy, outpatients
- Phlebotomy
- Physiotherapy and MSK
- Imaging
- Day cases

13.Nic Allen (PM Devereux) set out the design proposals:
» Design was indicative at this stage.
» There had been pre-application discussions with planners since May
2014.
+ A masterplan was proposed for integrated development with three
components — modern healthcare facilities; 3 form entry primary school;
and residential development including a significant proportion of family
houses.
* The masterplan showed location of the healthcare facilities to the west
of the site, the school to the east and housing through the middle.
» Access points from the Ridgeway and Hunters Way would be retained,
with the Ridgeway access moved slightly.
+ Existing bus routes would be retained and re-routed through the site,
and would set down in front of the main hospital entrance.
» The main section of the new hospital would be north of the Highlands
building and would allow patients, visitors and staff easy access from the
multi-storey car park.
* As many as possible of the good trees on site would be preserved, and
there would be a landscape strategy.
» All impacts of the development on the surrounding area had been
considered, including views from the Green Belt into the site.



Page 5

PLANNING PANEL - 7.1.2015

14.Steve Davies (TTP Consulting — transport consultant) advised:
* A transport assessment report had been produced.
» A trip generation assessment by all modes of transport was undertaken
and the impacts modelled.
» The existing hospital already generated traffic and post development the
traffic would probably be less.
* Examples of other primary schools and residential use survey database
resources were used in the assessments, which were scoped with the
Council and Transport for London.
* The area was busy at peak times, but the proposals would make the
situation no worse than it was now.
* There would be travel plans for the hospital and the school to
encourage sustainable methods of transport.
» Car parking provision at the hospital would be reduced and restricted.
There would be improved parking policies and enforcement.
* There would be a new route into the hospital from the Ridgeway: one
entrance that would be easy for people to find.
* The residential development would have a large proportion of family
houses, mainly two or three floors. The apartments would be up to five
storeys. There would be a design code to control quality: the aim was an
integrated site of the same quality.

15.Gary Barnes (representing LB Enfield’s Education Department) provided
information regarding the proposed new school:

» The Council had an agreed policy of local places for local pupils.

* Need for school places had been identified in the Enfield Town area for
two forms of entry by 2017 without taking account of this development.
The residential development of this site would increase the demand by one
further form of entry.

* The timetable proposed was for temporary school provision from
September 2015 and an aim to open the new school in September 2017,
but it would be more likely to open in 2018.

» Temporary buildings on Green Belt land were proposed to be used just
while the new school was being built on the main site.

» Access was proposed from Shooters Road, away from the main
entrances to the hospital and housing. Two options would be set out for
further consultation — one-way in, and out through two exits in the
remainder of the site; or a prohibition order to restrict vehicles accessing
Shooters Road.

A forceful school travel plan would be imposed, making it more
attractive to walk than use vehicle transport.

4
QUESTIONS BY PANEL MEMBERS

NOTED the following questions and observations from Members of the Panel.

1. Q. Why was the urgent care centre not included in the healthcare services
listed?



Page 6
PLANNING PANEL - 7.1.2015

A. It should have been included. The urgent care centre was an absolute
commitment.

. Q. Could the applicant consider possible 24 hour Accident and
Emergency (A&E) provision?

A. The BEH Clinical Strategy was agreed and that was what the applicant
was instructed on to implement. They were not in a position to open up
that strategy. There was no Chase Farm A&E in that strategy so there was
no intention to provide this in the application.

. Q. Could assurance be given that there would be no disruption during the
construction period to services provided by Chase Farm Hospital?

A. It was a key issue that during the building period all existing services
would continue. Investment would be put into existing buildings. A decant
and enabling plan would be put in place. The urgent care centre would
move into one of the existing buildings on site. All services now provided at
Chase Farm Hospital would continue to operate on the site.

. Q. Highlands Wing was originally part of the proposals: could assurance
be given that if would be part of the redevelopment?

A. Highlands Wing was originally proposed for use for Outpatients, but the
cost of refurbishment was too close to the cost of new build to be
considered economic. Highlands Wing would be retained as flexible space,
to allow expansion, with a planning designation as healthcare use, and
some form of restrictive covenant to ensure it was retained for healthcare.
It would be used for expansion of Chase Farm Hospital if required.

. Q. Has there been a transport assessment?

A. Yes, this has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and is
available on the Council website. If there is further work, it will be updated
with the reserved matters application. (The Chair confirmed that all
documents can be accessed on LB Enfield website
http://planningandbuildingcontrol.enfield.gov.uk/online-applications/

under the application reference 14/04574/0OUT). It could also be accessed
via the Royal Free London website. Paper copies were deposited at
Enfield Civic Centre, Enfield Town Library, and Chase Farm Hospital. The
consultation period would run until Thursday 15 January if people wanted
to make comments. If they did not agree with information in the transport
assessment they should make representation at this stage. It was a
fundamental part of the outline application.

. Q. A 3form of entry school would impact on the area. Would there be
drop off and pick up points or parents’ parking within the school site?

A. A number of options were being considered, including a pick up and
drop off point in the school grounds. Counter to that was a proposal that a
prohibition order be obtained to restrict parents from going into the site by
ensuring that only listed residents and cars would be able to access
Shooters Road at restricted times. It was acknowledged that traffic
management was an issue. There would be a need to consult local
residents on all these proposals.



Page 7

PLANNING PANEL - 7.1.2015

7. Q. Inview of traffic congestion at the moment in the Ridgeway and
difficulties in exiting Ridge Crest, would it be possible to have a point of
access from Hunters Way only?

A. No, as Hunters Way would not have the necessary capacity. The main
hospital access would move to the north to form a crossroads with Ridge
Crest and there would be an area for turning cars so that they did not
block the free flow of traffic. The traffic situation would be made no worse
by the redevelopment.

8. Q. With reference to expansion space, what was the footprint of the Royal
Free Hospital, for illustrative purposes?
A. Royal Free Hospital was a multi-storey building with specialist facilities
in an urban environment and very different. There was around 65,000m?2
floor space but it had a smaller footprint and was more concentrated.

5
QUESTIONS BY WARD COUNCILLORS

NOTED the following question from Councillor Glynis Vince, Highlands Ward
Councillor.

1. Q. On behalf of residents of Shooters Road, there were concerns about
the proposals. The plans did not show the road properly. It was not a
through road. Residents were concerned about parking and access.
Mitigation measures around other schools in the past had not worked.

A. Shooters Road was a dead end at the moment, but proposals were
being worked up to open it up into the hospital site, and take vehicles out
via the main site.

6
OPEN SESSION - QUESTIONS AND VIEWS FROM THE FLOOR

NOTED the following questions and observations from attendees, grouped
under subject headings:

1. Timescale

Q. The timescale for consultation was a cause for concern. There were
127 documents associated with this application. Could more time and / or
more public meetings be arranged?

Further concerns were also raised that the proposals were being pushed
through very quickly.

A. A speedy timescale was being pursued as there was a need to recover
the loss-making position of Chase Farm Hospital to give it a sustainable
future. The longer the hospital was loss making the more difficult this
would be.

2. Finance



Page 8
PLANNING PANEL - 7.1.2015

Q. Proposals were dependent on financial viability, but the relevant
documentation had not been made publicly available. No decision should
be made until firm figures had been seen.

A. It was advised that a detailed financial viability assessment had been
submitted to the Local Planning Authority, who would review it against
planning policies, and would publish a redacted version online with all
other documents relating to the application. Some of the information was
commercially sensitive as it related to the residential development, and
making public the assumptions of what the capital receipt might be would
affect the commercial bids. The residential development was the key
enabler to allow the development of the new hospital. The commercially
sensitive information should be protected to allow the NHS to obtain the
best value for the tax payer.

Q. Would all the monies made from the land sale go to Chase Farm
Hospital or Royal Free London or elsewhere, or would Royal Free London
be subsidising the redevelopment?

A. There was a commitment that all money raised from disposal of land
will be re-invested back into the new hospital. None would be going to the
Royal Free or Barnet Hospitals. This money would not cover the cost of
building the hospital. Funding would be coming from three sources: sales
receipt; contribution from Department of Health and Treasury; and from
Royal Free London as part of the acquisition process. The total cost of the
new hospital at the moment was over £120M.

Q. Attendees had ongoing concerns about approval of planning
permission without full knowledge of how it would be costed. If the sale of
land did not cover the full cost of the new hospital, the fear was that it
would not be finished or fully provided. The Council had no control over
clinical decisions.

A. Planning officers confirmed that the cost and how the redevelopment
would be funded was not critical to the planning assessment, and an
application could not be refused because of uncertainty on funding.

3. Hospital Facilities

Q. The hospital clearly needed major redevelopment, and local people
would welcome the improvements, but what were the particular targets?
A. There would be a wide range of benefits. Infection control would
improve for example as there were less hospital acquired infections in
modern facilities

Q. There had been no mention of psychiatric units: were any plans in
place?

A. Mental health was not within the care remit of the Royal Free London,
being the responsibility of Enfield, Barnet and Haringey Mental Health
Trust, which was a different Trust, but there had been liaison about the
proposals.



Page 9
PLANNING PANEL - 7.1.2015

Q. Hospital experience was a lot to do with staff. Nurses at Chase Farm
Hospital were disaffected. Would the plans help maintain and improve
nursing care when things were so chaotic?

A. The environment at the moment did not allow staff to deliver the
healthcare they wanted. The current facilities were poor. At night isolated
parts of the hospital were quite scary. This development would improve
recruitment and retention of nursing staff.

Q. Royal Free London was thanked for the positive news and
commitment to delivering redevelopment in a timely fashion. An
explanation was requested of the 70% spare capacity, whether future
expansion would be restricted to the main building, and what the lifespan
of Highlands Wing would be once renovated?

A. The building internally was designed to be adaptable. For example, the
number of theatres currently proposed was eight, but the design made
provision for an additional two if needed, close to existing theatres and
recovery. The design would enable the hospital to expand further if this
should be needed in the future. There would be land around and
immediately adjacent. Enfield CCG (Clinical Commissioning Group) had
advised they required 800mz2 ringfenced to allow them to consider
potentially putting a GP service on site. Highlands Wing added 4,600m? of
space. It was not included as part of the new hospital immediately
because it did not readily convert, but should be stripped to the core to
start again. A minimum 50 year life was the aim for new buildings.

Q. How flexible could the new hospital really be?

A. This adaptable building would give flexibility for changes in 5, 10, 15 or
20 years’ time. The pipework, walls, etc were all designed for flexibility.
Extensions would be able to be added on and changes made to the
internal layout. This would allow changes to occur to expand the clinical
services. There would be large floor plates and a wide frame structure that
allowed the interior to be changed. Ceilings would be high. There would
be a high proportion of single bedded rooms.

Q. Will the visual appearance of Highlands Wing and the car park be
enhanced?

A. Neither would change dramatically in appearance, but would stay
principally as they were. The entrance to the hospital would be slightly to
one side and the views would be of the new hospital.

Q. Would any facilities to be added to what was provided at Chase Farm
Hospital?

A. That was a healthcare related issue. The NHS Trust had a duty
separate from planning to provide services at the site.

Q. The proposal was a vast improvement on the last version put before
Committee in 2006. The positive aspirational promises had been heard
tonight and that all monies from the land sale would be ringfenced to the
new hospital, but any money would legally go to Royal Free London NHS
Trust and it was then up that Trust how it was spent. The assurances



Page 10
PLANNING PANEL - 7.1.2015

given were welcome, but a more robust and legally binding agreement
should be shown.

A. It had been made clear in a number of public arenas, in the press and
by the Trust Chief Executive and Chairman that all proceeds from land
sales would go into the new hospital at Chase Farm. The monies would
go to Royal Free London NHS Trust, but Chase Farm Hospital was now
part of that Trust. The money would be invested straight back into the new
hospital building. All the receipt money would be needed; without it there
would not be enough money to cover the build.

Q. The application was incredibly ‘woolly’. The proposals stated ‘up to
32,000m? of replacement hospital facilities, but attendees would like that
clarified in a legally binding manner. The proposal would provide hospital
facilities broadly comparable with current ones, but that was not good
enough. There was a lot of history to this hospital and past
disappointments should not be repeated.

A. ‘Up to 32,000m? was the planning way of defining the application. A
maximum had to be specified in the application to the Local Planning
Authority. No decrease in the amount of services was implied. Royal Free
London had an obligation around healthcare services to be provided. The
minimum floorspace required to deliver the BEH Clinical Strategy was
25,000m2,

Q. The A&E facility at Chase Farm Hospital had gone. The news media
showed problems and queues at hospitals across the country. Could this
proposal help this situation?

A. The healthcare issues and pressures around accident and emergency
provision were multi-factored. However, a more efficient hospital helped to
relieve pressure on accident and emergency services by improving the
flow through of patients and treatment as outpatients whenever possible.

4. Access, Parking and Traffic

Q. There were concerns that having main access for hospital users and
residents from the Ridgeway was not ideal. Residents feared traffic
gridlock, especially when there were closures of the M25.

A. The access from the Ridgeway would improve. It was accepted the
road was busy. The proposal was to create a reservoir in the middle of the
road to allow traffic to turn into the hospital without blocking the road. The
Hunters Way access was likely to be used by more residents. The
implications for junctions had been modelled on computer software. The
improvements proposed would create a nil detriment situation. The traffic
would not be noticeably worse.

Q. Areduction in parking spaces at Chase Farm Hospital was
concerning. It was difficult to use public transport with someone who was
ill. Would there be thought given to patients coming by car?

A. The proposals would only reduce parking slightly, to encourage people
not to use cars. But there would be patient drop off areas, and wardens
would not ticket without due consideration.

-10 -



Page 11

PLANNING PANEL - 7.1.2015

Q. Travel plans to encourage walking to the hospital and to the school,
and the statement that traffic flow would be improved on the Ridgeway
seemed at odds. Would there be crossing points or measures to slow the
traffic?

A. Pedestrians would have to walk across the hospital junction as they
did now, but there was likely to be traffic calming such as a raised table.
There was an existing footway.

Q. Ridge Crest residents relied on the current road set up to be able to
exit onto the Ridgeway. If the entrance was moved and a crossroads
formed, they would not be able to get out of Ridge Crest. The traffic
assessment seemed to have been done over a very short period, and
parking assessment done in one day, and the results were misleading.
Trying to pull out of Ridge Crest at 8:00am was very difficult. The reduced
number of parking spaces at Chase Farm Hospital would also cause
displacement of more cars parking in Ridge Crest and from an earlier hour
of the morning.

A. This busy junction was acknowledged. The proposals would generally
improve the flow of traffic. It was accepted that vehicles exiting Ridge
Crest may have to wait a little longer to get out. They could however leave
by Hadley Road. It was noted that the Ridgeway was a strategic road. The
initial junction proposal had been for a roundabout, but that did not work
as well as a priority junction would.

The Chair advised that the Council’s Traffic and Transportation officers
would be looking at the calculations and making an independent
assessment of the validity of the assumptions.

Q. Residents of Shooters Road and Comreddy Close had concerns about
the negative impacts of the proposed access. Traffic would be chaotic on
this narrow road. The proposal did not make sense, and it did not appear
that the applicant understood what it was like there now?

A. Shooters Road currently had a one hour CPZ in the middle of the day
to stop commuter parking from Gordon Hill Station. Any changes to the
CPZ would be consulted on with the residents. The residents would not be
restricted from their road, and they would be able to apply for permits for
visitors. Widening would be required for an access road. An informal
crossing point in Shooters Road for school users was envisaged.

Q. Could an indication be given of which roads and blocks would be fixed
by the outline application?

A. The outline application covered access points, so these would be
fixed. It would be expected when a residential developer came forward
they might seek amendment to the indicative road layout.

5. School

Q. Who would operate the school: would it be a faith school, free school,
or Local Authority run?

-11 -



Page 12
PLANNING PANEL - 7.1.2015

A. It was proposed that a Local Authority run school would be provided by
expansion of one of the borough’s high performing schools.

6. Housing

Q. The need for affordable housing was raised. The need to get value out
of the receipt was acknowledged, but the tenures were questioned.

A. In this case, all the money from the housing development would be
used to fund the new hospital, so there was no profit. However, the Trust
recognised that as a public body it had social responsibility, and wanted to
provide affordable housing, and was proposing 14% affordable housing
provision across the site.

Q. Inrespect of the housing, it would be the developer who bought the
land who would make the firm plans and these were likely to be very
different to the indicative plans shown. There were concerns that a real
developer would ask for more housing on the site.

A. It was confirmed that plans in the outline application were indicative.
The actual development could be different in appearance, but this outline
application would fix the upper limit on numbers and height of dwellings.
The planning statement showed the mix of dwellings of two to four-bed
houses and also flats, with larger blocks towards the centre of the site.
This would not become an executive-style type development, but would
be typical family dwellings. Market demand had been considered. The
outline application was for up to 500 dwellings. If a developer wanted to
build more, that would have impacts and they would have to make a
further planning application for a change in the number of dwellings, and
may need to make a S106 contribution.

Plans showed an indicative layout to show how the amount of
development could be fitted in, but the layout was not fixed. The number
of dwellings could go down if the developer considered that family homes
with bigger gardens would sell better.

Q. A close neighbouring resident wished to object that if the hospital
entrance was moved they would lose the clock tower from view, and that
there would be a detrimental impact from proposed 16m high four bed
houses.

A. Housing proposals were worked up through a series of meetings with
Council officers, with a view to protecting existing residents’ amenities and
appropriate separation distances between dwellings, etc. Residential
dwellings were usually around 3m per storey high. Upper limits were
specified in the outline application, but this did not mean that all
development would be built up to those limits. An uppermost height of
16m applied generally for the principle of development, together with an
upper ceiling of 500 residences. A developer could apply for a variation,
but there was a need to protect people's amenity and the application set
appropriate upper limits in areas of the site. Representatives would be
happy to talk to residents individually after the meeting.

-12 -



7

Page 13
PLANNING PANEL - 7.1.2015

Q. Along with the housing, were any commercial or shop units proposed?
There were no local shopping facilities at the moment and traffic would be
worse if residents had to drive elsewhere.

A. The main hospital would include an ancillary convenience store, such
as Sainsburys Local or M&S Simply Food. The hospital would also be a
community facility. As well as the convenience store, it would have a café
and a pharmacy accessible to residents as well as to hospital patients and
visitors.

CLOSE OF MEETING

NOTED the closing points, including:

1.

The Chair thanked everyone for attending and contributing to the meeting.
He felt it had been constructive and respectful and would be of great
assistance in evaluating the application.

Notes taken at this meeting would be appended to the Planning Officers’
report to be considered by the Planning Committee when the application
was presented for decision. It was intended to present this application to
Planning Committee on Tuesday 24 February 2015.

There was a deputation procedure whereby involved parties could request
to address the Planning Committee meeting (details on the Council
website or via the Planning Committee Secretary 020 8379 4093 / 4091
jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk or metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk and residents

could also ask ward councillors to speak on their behalf.

Full details of the application were available to view and download from the
Council’s website www.enfield.gov.uk (Application Ref: 14/04574/OUT).

The consultation period had been extended as advised and would now
end on Thursday 15 January 2015.

-13-



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15 Agenda Item 4

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2014/2015 - REPORT NO 165

COMMITTEE: AGENDA - PART 1 ITEMm 4
PLANNING COMMITTEE
4 February 2015. SUBJECT -

REPORT OF: MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS

Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways and Transportation

Contact Officer:
Planning Decisions Manager
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841

4.1 PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND APPLICATIONS TO DISPLAY
ADVERTISEMENTS DEC

On the Schedules attached to this report | set out my recommendations in
respect of planning applications and applications to display advertisements. |
also set out in respect of each application a summary of any representations
received and any later observations will be reported verbally at your meeting.

Background Papers

(1)  Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that the
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any
other material considerations. Section 54A of that Act, as inserted by
the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, states that where in making
any determination under the Planning Acts, regard is to be had to the
development, the determination shall be made in accordance with the
plan unless the material considerations indicate otherwise. The
development plan for the London Borough of Enfield is the Unitary
Development Plan (UDP).

(2) Other background papers are those contained within the file, the
reference number of which is given in the heading to each application.



This page is intentionally left blank



Paqe 17 A cnonda o E

/4 \3UIIUM LA\ B B 4

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date : 4™ February 2015

Report of
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways & Transportation

Contact Officer:

Ward:

Andy Higham 020 8379 3848 Enfield Highway

Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841
Rajvinder Kaur 020 8379 1860

Ref: 14/04795/FUL

Category: Full Application

LOCATION: 1246 Mollison Avenue, Enfield, EN3 7NJ

PROPOSAL.: Erection of a garage workshop involving installation of roller shutter to front elevation.

Applicant Name & Address:
Mr Daniel Miller

1246 Mollison Avenue
Brimsdown

Enfield

Hertfordshire

EN3 7NJ

Agent Name & Address:

RECOMMENDATION:

That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions.




Page 18

Ref: 14/04795/FUL LOCATION: 1246 Mollison Avenue, Enfield, EN3 7NJ,

N

gl

g

il

4 e |

;gm...& bl |
| -} o]

e
o

—u i‘":_

L
5
o]

T
a o

o
A

o o
T

gl
"
ST

= ]

"

% ‘:?1':'

o A

gl T,
e
:“I:‘
Rl

o,
;>
S

o
S

o
L, )

L

e
A

,

",
S

o
Saletet

Council

| _[u]

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey Scale 1:1250 North

on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and

database right 2013. All Rights Reserved. @
ENF’ELDA‘& Ordnance Survey License number 100019820




11

1.2

13

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

Page 19

Site and Surroundings

The application site area comprises the Pressbay Motors compound, a
garage offering MOT and car servicing / repairs together with vehicle salvage
yard, situated on the west side of Mollison Avenue. The site houses the main
work shop, customer car park and a salvage area. The site lies within the
Brimsdown Industrial Estate, Strategic Industrial Location and North East
Enfield AAP.

Mollison Avenue is a principle road that runs north to south through the Upper
Lea Valley corridor. To the west of the site run the railway tracks that serve
the Greater Anglia trains going through Brimsdown from Stratford to
Broxbourne and beyond. Further to the west are the rear gardens of
residential properties of Brimsdown Avenue.

The area in which the proposal building would be located is at the southern
end of the site within the overflow car park. At present it used for standing
vehicles that are awaiting work. The salvage yard area consists of a large
uncovered area with temporary tents to assist in the servicing of vehicles.
There are a large number of vehicle frames and parts stacked one car and
two cars high. The salvage operation only operates for a few companies such
as the AA and British Gas, dismantling their vehicles. The service is no longer
offered to members of the public.

The boundary to the car park facing Mollison Avenue is made up of metal
mesh fencing. The boundary to the salvage operations to the north of the site,
facing Mollison Avenue, consists of 2.5m high acoustic timber fencing with
razor wire on steel posts. The boundary facing the railway tracks is made up
of 2.5m high steel security fencing and barbed razor wire.

Proposal

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a light steel building for a
garage workshop. It is to be used for vehicle maintenance, bodywork and

spraying.

The proposed building will be 20m in length, 10m wide, 5m in height to eaves
level and 6.62m to the ridge of a pitched roof. The panels are to be coloured
goosewing grey.

The building is to be constructed of light weight steel. Fenestration will
comprise of 1 industrial (4m wide, 5 metre high) 75 mm galvanised lath roller
shutter door on the front (east) elevation and two steel security doors on a
flank (south) elevation.

Relevant Planning Decisions

P13-3001PLA — Erection of a light steel building for storing garage equipment
and vehicle components — Granted with conditions 31% January 2014.

LBE/80/0015 — Transport Depot — GRANTED — 3™ November 1980.

TP/86/1128 — Vehicle Salvage — APPROVED conditional — 20" October 1986



4.1

41.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

41.4

4.1.5

4.2

421

5.1

Page 20

Consultations
Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Thames Water

Thames Water advises that with regard to sewerage and water infrastructure
capacity, there are no objections. However they recommend that petrol/oil
interceptors be fitted in all car parking/washing/repair facilities. They advise
informatives in relation to sewers and water mains.

Environment Agency

No comments.

Traffic and Transportation

No objection.

English Heritage

No objections.
Tree Officer

The trees on the Network Rail land should not provide any significant
constraint to development on the site.

Public

Letters was sent to 3 adjoining occupiers. In addition a notice has been
displayed on site. No responses have been received.

Relevant Policy
London Plan

Policy 2.17  Strategic Industrial Locations

Policy 4.1 Developing London’s economy

Policy 4.4 Managing industrial land and premises
Policy 5.1 Climate change mitigation

Policy 5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions
Policy 5.3 Sustainable design and construction
Policy 5.4 Retrofitting

Policy 5.5 Decentralised energy networks

Policy 5.6 Decentralised energy in development proposals
Policy 5.7 Renewable energy

Policy 5.8 Innovative energy technologies

Policy 5.9 Overheating and cooling

Policy 5.10  Urban greening

Policy 5.12  Flood risk management
Policy 5.13  Sustainable drainage
Policy 5.16  Waste self-sufficiency
Policy 5.17  Waste capacity



5.2

5.3

5.4

Policy 5.18
Policy 5.19
Policy 5.21
Policy 6.3
Policy 6.9
Policy 6.12
Policy 6.13
Policy 7.1
Policy 7.2
Policy 7.3
Policy 7.4
Policy 7.14
Policy 7.15
Policy 7.19
Policy 7.20
Policy 8.2

Core Strategy

CP13
CP14
CP15
CP16:
CP20:
CP21:

CP22:
CP24:
CP25

CP26:
CP30:

CP31:
CP32:
CP36:
CP40:
CP46:

Page 21

Construction, excavation and demolition waste
Hazardous waste

Contaminated land

Assessing the effects of development on transport capacity
Cycling

Road network capacity

Parking

Building London’s neighbourhoods and communities
An inclusive environment

Designing out crime

Local character

Improving air quality

Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes
Biodiversity and access to nature

Geological Conservation

Planning obligations

Promoting Economic Prosperity

Safeguarding Strategic Industrial Land

Locally Significant Industrial Sites

Taking part in economic success and improving skills
Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure
Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage
infrastructure

Delivering sustainable waste management

The road network

Pedestrians and cyclists

Public transport

Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open
environment

Built and landscape heritage

Pollution

Biodiversity

North east Enfield

Infrastructure contributions

Development Management Document (DMD)

DMD19
DMD20
DMD21
DMD23
DMD 37
DMD64
DMD66
DMD68
DMD78
DMD79

Strategic Industrial Location

Locally Significant Industrial Sites

Complementary and Supporting Uses within SIL and LSIS
New Employment Development

Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development
Pollution Control and Assessment

Land Contamination and Instability

Noise

Nature Conservation

Ecological Enhancements

Other Relevant Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance



6

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.3

6.3.1

6.4

6.4.1

Page 22

S106 Supplementary Planning Document
North East Enfield Area Action Plan Submission Version
Upper Lea Valley Opportunity Area Framework (July 2013)

Analysis

Principle

The Council is committed to supporting businesses and facilitating
sustainable economic growth. It will continue to protect industrial land and
employment premises including those safeguarded as Strategic Industrial
Locations (SIL) through Policy 14 of the Core Strategy wherein there will be a
presumption against non B1, B2 or B8 uses. This is further supported by
DMD 19 within the Brimsdown Industrial Estate which is designated as a
Preferred Industrial Location.

The erection of the proposed light steel building for a garage workshop within
the site would not conflict with the use of the site. In principle it is acceptable,
however its impact upon the character of the surrounding area and impact
upon neighbours needs to be assessed.

Impact on Character and Appearance of Surrounding Area

The structure would be simple in design and construction. It would represent
a large structure but within the context of the site it would not be dominant or
out of keeping relative to existing buildings in terms of materials used and
design.

It would be contained within the site and set away from the boundary
adjoining Mollison Avenue. It would be located next to the western boundary,
adjacent to the railway line. The nearest residential properties are the other
side of the railway line and are at their closest located approximately 45m
away. The building would be visible from the residential properties. However,
it would be viewed against the back drop of the Brimsdown Industrial Estate,
including the larger industrial buildings, and therefore would not be dominant
or obtrusive.

The scale, bulk and appearance of the proposed development is compatible
with its surroundings and therefore complies with policy.

Impact on Neighbouring Properties

The proposed structure would be located to the west of the site 1m from the
boundary that adjoins the railway tracks, approximately 45m from the rear of
the nearest residential property on the opposite side of the railway tracks.
There will be no impact to residential amenities, in terms of light, outlook or
privacy.

Ecology

The location and nature of the proposed structure would not have an impact
upon the Chingford Reservoirs SSSI, located within proximity to the site.



6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

6.6

6.6.1

6.6.2

7.1.1

Page 23

DMD79 of the Development Management Document states that development
resulting in the creation of 100m? of floorspace should provide on-site
ecological enhancements. The location and nature of the site means that
suitable enhancements cannot be achieved.

The site is completely covered by hard surfacing, vehicles and associated
parts and has no vegetation within, nor is there space within the site to
accommodate new vegetation. The hard surfacing that covers the site allows
oil run off to be channelled towards petrol interceptors.

Additionally the structure would be located next to the site boundary that
adjoins the railway tracks. The noise emitted from here and the use of the site
for dismantling and the maintenance of vehicles, would be inappropriate for
the location of bat roosts.

Pollution

The proposal would be for a garage workshop related to the uses on the site.
Due to the existing use, the site has a number of noise and pollution
mitigation measures installed and operating such as acoustic timber fencing,
petrol interceptors including lead acid waste container and a skip area for iron
waste. The ground is angled so as to allow run off of oils and petrol to flow to
the petrol interceptors and not towards the boundaries.

Policy DMD64 states that developments will only be permitted if pollution and
the risk of pollution is prevented, or minimised and mitigated during all phases
of development, this includes operations/occupation and maintenance.

As the proposed structure is currently proposed for a garage workshop, due
to its scale it has the potential for more flexible uses related to the existing
use of the site. In future the structure could potentially be used for the storage
of oils or chemicals, in this respect a condition related to secondary
containment of oils and chemicals will be attached on any approval.

CIL

As of the April 2010, legislation in the form of CIL Regulations 2010 (as
amended) came into force which would allow ‘charging authorities’ in England
and Wales to apportion a levy on net additional floorspace for certain types of
qualifying development to enable the funding of a wide range of infrastructure
that is needed as a result of development. Since April 2012 the Mayor of
London has been charging CIL in Enfield at the rate of £20 per sqgm. The
Council is progressing its own CIL but this is not expected to be introduced
until spring / summer 2015

In this instance the development is CIL liable. The amount of CIL payable
based on 200 sq.m of new floor space would be £4,251.12.

Conclusion

In regards to the relevant policy and guidance the proposed light steel
building for a garage workshop is considered acceptable. The proposed light
steel building by reason of its siting, scale and design, would not detract from
the character and appearance of the site and wider surrounding area, nor
would it cause undue harm to the residential amenities of neighbouring



Page 24

occupants, in accordance with Policies CP30 of the Enfield Plan Core
Strategy, 7.1, 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan, DMD37 of the Development
Management Document and the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation
That planning permission be GRANTED subiject to the following conditions:

C60 Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which forms part of this
notice.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

C51A Time Limited Permission

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later
than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the decision
notice.

Reason: To comply with the provisions of S.51 of the Planning & Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

Secondary Containment for facilities that store oils, fuels or chemicals

Any facilities for the storage of oils, fuels or chemicals shall be provide with
secondary containment that is impermeable to both the oil, fuel or chemical
and water, for example a bund, details of which shall be submitted to the local
planning authority for approval. The minimum volume of the secondary
containment should be at least equivalent to the capacity of the tank plus
10%.

If there is more than one tank in the secondary containment the capacity of
the containment should be at least the capacity of the largest tank plus 10%
or 25% of the total tank capacity, whichever is greatest. All fill points, vents,
gauges and sight gauge must be located within the secondary containment.

The secondary containment shall have no opening used to drain the system.
Associated above ground pipework should have no mechanical joints, except
at inspection hatches and either leak detection equipment installed or regular
leak checks. All fill points and tank vent pipe outlets should be detailed to
discharge downwards into the bund.

That the building hereby approved shall only be occupied for purposes
ancillary to the existing use of the site and shall not be subdivided and
occupied by separate businesses unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of amenity and highway safety.



(

d

[

SRl

i

T

95

e

T ——— =

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 201 |. Al rights reserved. Licence number 100020449

Narehouse

E—

E: 92952920 N:

09 TQ2D92974 NGR: TQIDD79E

194742298 T

COPYRGHT: The contents of this drawing may not be reproduced in part or in whde without the written consent of Building Design Conalants

PROJECT:

Proposed site Improvements

DRAWING

nmeer: | 106371

Location plan

DRAWING:
CLIENT:  Pressbay Mators
OITE: 1246 Mollison Avenue
Enfleld
EN3 7NJ
DATE:  November 2011
5CALES:  1:12D0 €@ A

Building Design Consultants
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGNERS
STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
BUILDING SURVEYORS
PLANNING CONSULTANTS
BUILDING CONSULTANTS
47 Deer Park Way, Waltham Abbey, Essex EN9 3YN
www.plansandcalcs.co.uk
Tel: 01992 768866 Fax: 01992 768877




Z 100-INdd

AJd H39NNN_dor
F1LIL
0Gz:l 3Fwos| ¥#10C°€0°G0 3Lva doudy 25U} 0} uopeal
*sBuipis Aem|iea Buoje Bujuuna -
0} uopjejal uj uopisod Buipjing m:_”M”_.w_‘ aoa) Aipunoq Auadoad seay uj uopysod Buipjing Buimoys
: 0SL:1
(ATINO aAneaipul) g |le3eq (ATNO 2AEIIPUI) Y UOHEASIT
anusAy UOSIIION 9z L

NV1d NOILYOO1 3LIS

woo'sIojowAeqssaid@oyul
8020 €77 8020 xed
€20 €¥¥ 8020 I18L

9@ouay) Aipunoq
Apadoug

NZ €N3 a131dN3
SNUBAY UOSIIION 9¥C L

QL7 SHOLOW Avass3dd

86201

‘panow uoyeoso Buiping maN
¥102/¥0/20 - "L A9y

"poppe suoneAs|3
‘panouu uolsod Buipjing ‘papusiue suoisuswip Bulpjing
G10Z/L0/61 - "2 Aoy

aAy uosijjoly Buoje Bujuuns
EEVETRTTOT

'SUOISINGY

Page 26

== e e whhe o T ~—*

rO>S
3IZI0O0S
SO=2

\
1
\
7
0007 ] j’“
H
I

00002 .
910}
(wo} x wog =swi@ v/0)
‘uononysuog jeels b0 ——
Buipjing pasodoud g |releg
:S8JON .

ealy papeys



Page 27

6.062m

5.000m

6.062m

5.000m

uopeAs|3 jesy a1qeD Wby

Wooo'0e wooo ok

—
A
=8

k
¢

uoneAs|3 juold 2aqes yaq




Warehouse




Page 29 A coundla lona

/4 \3\rl LA ISR A B I |

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 4" February 2015
Report of Contact Officer: Ward:
Assistant Director, Planning, Andy Higham 020 8379 3848 Edmonton Green
Highways & Transportation Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841

Ms Eloise Kiernan 020 8379 3830

Ref: 14/02646/RE4 Category: LBE - Dev by LA

LOCATION: Derby Road, Off Kenninghall Road, London, N18 2PA

PROPOSAL: Renewal of unimplemented permission granted under ref: LBE/08/0003 for the use of site for
contractors storage / vehicle storage yard.

Applicant Name & Address: Agent Name & Address:
Corporate Asset Mgt-Estates & Valuation, | MrR. F. Sample
P O Box 50. Civic Centre Corporate Asset Mgt-Estates & Valuation,

. P O Box 50, Civic Centre,
Silver Street, Silver Street,

Enfield, Enfield,
Middlesex, Middlesex,
EN1 3XB EN1 3XB
RECOMMENDATION:

That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with Regulation 3 of the
Town & Country Planning General Regulations 1992 subject to conditions.




Page 30

Ref: 14/02646/RE4 LOCATION: Derby Road, Off Kenninghall Road, London, N18 2PA

g =
il

/
4
Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey Scale 1:1250 North
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved. @
ENF!)ELDI Ordnance Survey License number 100019820
ounci




11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

4.1

41.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.2

421

Page 31

Site and Surroundings

The application site is located to the south of Derby Road adjacent to the
junction with Kenninghall Road. It comprises a large area of hard standing
with points of access from both Derby Road and Kenninghall Road, although
the latter does not appear to be in active use.

The surrounding area is characterised by a predominantly residential
development to the west and industrial to the east. The site is identified as
Strategic Industrial Land and within Flood Zone 3. It is also located within the
area covered by the Central Leeside Area Action Plan.

Proposal

The application is being reported to Planning Committee as the Council have
an interest in the land.

The application seeks consent for the renewal of planning permission,
granted under LBE/08/0003, for the use of the site for contractor’s storage
and a vehicle storage yard.

The site is approximately 1,150 sg.m in size and would operate for 24 hours a
day, 7 days a week. It is proposed that a maximum of three members of staff
would be on site at any given point. This includes one permanent and two
temporary members of staff.

Relevant Planning Decisions

TP/89/1501 -Use of site as winter quarters for four showman’s caravans from
1st November 1989 to 31st March 1990 — granted

LBE/08/0003 - Use of site for contractor’s storage / vehicle storage yard —
granted with conditions

Consultations
Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Environmental Health

No objections

Traffic and Transportation

Any response will be reported verbally at Planning Committee

Environment Agency

Any response will be reported verbally at Planning Committee
Public

Letters were sent to 4 adjoining and nearby residents. In addition a notice has
been displayed on site. No responses have been received



51

52

5.3

54

Page 32

Relevant Policy
London Plan

Policy 2.17 Strategic Industrial Land

Policy 4.4 Managing Industrial Land and Premises

Policy 5.1 Climate Change Mitigation

Policy 5.3 Sustainable Design and Construction

Policy 5.4 Retrofitting

Policy 6.3 Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
Policy 7.4 Local Character

Core Strategy

CP1 Sustainable and Efficient Land Use

CP13 Promoting Economic Prosperity

CP14 Safeguarding Strategic Industrial Land

CP16 Taking part in Economic Success and Improving Skills
CP20 Sustainable Energy Use and Energy Infrastructure

CP21 Delivering Sustainable Water Supply, Drainage and Sewerage
Infrastructure

CP25 Pedestrians and Cyclists

CP28 Managing Flood Risk through Development

CP30 Maintaining and Improving the Quality of the Built and Open
Environment

CP32 Pollution

CP37 Central Leeside

CP38 Meridian Water

Development Management Document

DMD 19 Strategic Industrial Location (SIL)

DMD37 Achieving High Quality and Design Led Development
DMD 45 Parking Standards and Layout

DMD46 Vehicle Crossovers and Dropped Kerbs

DMD 47 New Roads, Access and Servicing

DMD 48 Transport Assessments

DMD 49 Sustainable Design and Construction Statements
DMD 50 Environmental Assessment Methods

DMD 51 Energy Efficiency Standards

DMD 52 Decentralised Energy Networks

DMD 53 Low and Zero Carbon Technology

DMD 64 Pollution Control and Assessment

DMD 66 Land Contamination and Instability

DMD 68 Noise

Other relevant policy

Central Leeside Area Action Plan
Meridian Water Master Plan (July 2013)
The Mayor’s Transport Strategy (2011)
Manual for Streets 1 and 2

NPPF (2012)

NPPG (2014)



Page 33

6. Analysis
6.1 Principle
6.1.1 There has been a notable shift in planning policy direction since the

6.1.2

6.1.3

6.1.4

6.2

6.2.1

determination of the previous application in 2008. At a local level, the Core
Strategy and Development Management Document (DMD) have been
formally adopted, and the Unitary Development Plan (UDP) has been
superseded. Additionally, the site lies within the boundary of the Central
Leeside Area Action Plan and Meridian Water Master Plan. The Central
Leeside Area Action Plan is at a submission level and therefore can be
attributed increasing weight. Meridian Water is long established as a
significant area of regeneration through Enfield’s Core Strategy, The London
Plan and the Upper lee Valley Opportunity Area Planning Framework. It is the
Council’s largest regeneration priority area, where a comprehensive approach
to development will take place. At a regional level, the London Plan has been
subject to amendments. Additionally, at a National level the PPG’s and PPSs
have been consolidated into the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
and National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG). These changes in policy
will therefore be a key factor in the determination of the current application for
renewal of the unimplemented planning permission.

The use of the site for storage purposes in connection with a contractor’s yard
is akin to a B8 storage use and therefore is consistent with the prevailing
industrial character of the immediately adjacent land, that seeks to
concentrate B1, B2 and B8 uses within Strategic Industrial Areas.

The surrounding area is currently the focus of wider regeneration proposals
through the Meridian Water Master Plan and the Central Leeside Area Action
Plan, which place the site and the immediate locality within a much more
comprehensive framework. It is noted that objectives of both seek to retain its
industrial and employment character and allow improved accessibility through
public transport provision and the greater use of vehicular movements along
the existing road networks, including better access for pedestrians and
cyclists with better routes and connections to surrounding areas.

It is considered that a further temporary use for the purposes proposed would
not compromise these objectives. However, given the longer term ambitions
for the area it is considered appropriate to grant planning permission only on
a temporary basis to ensure the long term regeneration objectives are not
prejudiced. A further temporary period of 3 years is therefore appropriate,
having regard to Policy 4.4 and 2.17 of the London Plan, CP14 and CP37 of
the Core Strategy and DMD19 of the DMD, as well as the objectives outlined
within the Central Leeside Area Action Plan.

Impact on Neighbouring Properties

The nearest residential properties are located to the north on Rays Road with
the rear of these dwellings approximately 70 metres from the application site.
Whilst the southern boundary of the rear gardens would be only 45 metres
away, the intervening land is occupied by Conduit Lane, which is a busy road
providing access to and from the North Circular and used by industrial and
heavy goods vehicles. Whilst the proposed use would operate 24 hours per
day 7 days per week, it is considered the size of the site would limit the level



6.2.2

6.2.3

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.4

6.4.1

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

Page 34

of activity it could generate. In addition, it is considered that the proposal
would be sufficiently distant from these properties to not result in a
detrimental impact on their amenities through an increase in noise and
general disturbance. Additionally, it is noted that Environmental Health have
no objections in regards to air quality, contaminated land, noise or nuisance.

On the opposite side of Kenninghall Road is Kenninghall Open Space. This
is a substantial area of public amenity space available to the local community.
However, it is noted that the most actively used areas are further away from
the existing industrial uses. As such, having regard to the existing industrial
context and the scale of the proposed use, it is considered it would not affect
the amenities of the users of Kenninghall Open Space.

The properties immediately surrounding the site are industrial uses and
therefore it is not considered the proposal would result in an adverse impact
on the occupiers of these buildings.

Traffic and Transportation

The site is accessible from Derby Road on to Montagu Road and Conduit
Lane and thereafter, onto the North Circular Road and the North South Route.
Given the good access to the existing highways network and the limited size
of the site, it is considered that traffic movements would not affect traffic flows
on these important routes or conditions of general highway safety.

However, there is concern about the use of the existing access to the site
from Kenninghall Road, which is not designed for use by large vehicles. It is
noted that this access does not appear to be in active use and as a result , an
appropriately worded condition could be attached requiring that the access
from Kenninghall Road be permanently closed in favour of the existing access
from Derby Road. In addition, a condition is also recommended to require
details of the internal parking and turning arrangements to ensure the
operation of the site does not affect access or highway safety.

Other Matters

The site is located with Flood Zone 3, within the 1 in 100 flood risk event. As
such, a condition is proposed requiring there to be no raising of site levels to
ensure the proposal does not adversely effect on or off site flood storage.

CIL

As of the April 2010, legislation in the form of CIL Regulations 2010 (as
amended) came into force which would allow ‘charging authorities’ in England
and Wales to apportion a levy on net additional floorspace for certain types of
qualifying development to enable the funding of a wide range of infrastructure
that is needed as a result of development. Since April 2012 the Mayor of
London has been charging CIL in Enfield at the rate of £20 per sgm. The
Council is progressing its own CIL but this is not expected to be introduced
until spring / summer 2015.

The development is not liable for CIL.

7. Conclusion



7.1

Page 35

The renewal of the permission for a 3 year period use to allow the use of the
site as contractor’s storage/vehicle storage yard would not compromise the
existing the Strategic Industrial Area or Central Leeside Area Action Plan.
Additionally, the change of use would not be detrimental to residential
amenities or highway safety.

8. Recommendation

8.1

=

No

That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with
Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning General Regulations 1992
subject to the following conditions:

C60 — Approved plans

There shall be no raising of existing ground levels on the site.

Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding due to impedance of flood
flows and reduction of flood storage capacity.

That within 3 months of the date of this decision the existing access to
Kenninghall Road (marked B on the approved plan) shall be closed and the
footway reinstated in accordance with details which have first been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic within
the public highway.

C12 — Details of Parking and Turning Facility

That within 3 months of the date of this decision, development details for
parking and turning facilities shall be provided in accordance with the
standards adopted by the Local Planning Authority to be approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The facilities shall be constructed in
accordance with the approved details and shall be maintained for this
purpose.

Reason: To ensure that the development complies with Local Plan Policies
and does not prejudice conditions of safety or traffic flow on adjoining
highways.

C19 — Details of Refuse Storage

That within 3 months of this decision, details of refuse storage facilities to be
provided within the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The facilities shall be provided in accordance
with the approved details and retained thereafter.

Reason: In the interests of amenity.

C31 — Open Storage

C49 — Restricted Use

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 1995, or any amending Order, the premises
shall only be used for purposes within Use Class B8 Storage as defined by
the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended).
Reason: In the interests of amenity and to ensure the impact of a change of
use can be appropriately assessed.

The use hereby permitted shall be discontinued and the land restored to its
former condition on or before 01 February 2018 in accordance with a scheme
of work submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the objectives of the Strategic
Industrial Land, the Central Leeside Area Action Plan and the Meridian Water
Masterplan , having regard to policies 4.4 and 2.17 of the London Plan, CP14
and CP37 of the Core Strategy and DMD19 of the DMD, as well as the



Page 36

objectives outlined within the Central Leeside Area Action Plan and Meridian
Water Masterplan.



tDERBY' ROAD

A o a1 T 01 ] — 7 ’ ]
B Bl |
el e I |
r - R _ - e _ s
L Twr ' e
I ‘ [
L Twr g SR | [/
!"I‘ ,";
I
B

", El Sub Sta Rl e

- Car Park

Works /| |

all

ace "‘ “-‘,‘ i 7 / ‘f«"l ::;’I
|  \Mavkeall | . — [

Triavrr‘:p“;:remudmadrmmo?gm Survey
materi ht ission of Ordnance Su r
oo o e Conmotera verieays | Scale:- 1:500 NORTH

| Stationery Office QMWMWJ Paper Size:- A4 E N F ’ E L D

osnbopoodseabrs foil o5 Date:- 17th February 2011 Council

coeh proseings: L andon Boiigh of Erifield Map Produced By Asset Information Team/RAS P




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 4™ February 2015

Report of
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways & Transportation

Contact Officer: Ward:
Andy Higham 020 8379 3848 Bowes
Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841
Mr Nigel Catherall 020 8379 3833

Ref: 14/04449/FUL

Category: Full Application

LOCATION: 20-22 Green Lanes,

London, N13 6HT

PROPOSAL: Conversion of 1st floor into 3 self-contained flats comprising 2 x 1-bed and 1 x2-bed, together

with a first floor rear extension.

Applicant Name & Address:

Mr Huseyin Tim

OZ Tum, 20-22 Green Lanes
London

N13 6HT

United Kingdom

Agent Name & Address:
Mr Tanyel Gulbahar

15 Ryecroft Crescent
Barnet

Hertfordshire

ENS5 3BP

United Kingdom

RECOMMENDATION:

That planning permission be REFUSED for reasons.

Note for Members:
This application would normally

be dealt with under delegated powers but it is referred to Planning

Committee for consideration at the request of Councillor Savva in the light of the planning history of

the site.

?




Page 40

Lanes,

Ref: 14/04449/FUL LOCATION: 20-22 Green

rth

No

London, N13 6HT,

ce Survey Scale 1:1250
|

ENF:ELQ*&
Council




11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

Page 41

Site and Surroundings

The application premises comprise the first floor of a two-storey parade on
the eastern side of Green Lanes, on the corner of the junction with Grenoble
Gardens. The ground floor of both 20 and 22 Green Lanes comprises a
single Al shop, converted into one retail unit under planning ref TP/08/1401.
The properties on the opposite corner of Grenoble Gardens are residential
with the dwellinghouse frontages facing Grenoble Gardens and set back from
the public highway with the provision of front gardens.

The premises is located within a parade of properties with retail use at ground
floor, and residential use at first and second floors. The application site falls
within the Green Lanes “Large Local Centre”. With the exception of the
commercial uses, the surrounding area is predominantly residential in
character.

Proposal

Permission is sought for a first floor rear extension and conversion of the
existing premises to 3 flats (2 x 1 bed and 1 x 2 bed).

This application follows three previous refusals of planning permission for a
first floor rear extension and conversion to 3 flats. The current application
differs from these as the depth of the rear extension has been reduced and
the internal configuration of the flats has been altered.

It should be noted that the submitted plans appear to already show the
existence of 3 flats and self-containment of the first floor with access on
Grenoble Gardens. A look into the planning history indicates that permission
for this has not been given, and the applicant stated in the previously refused
application TP/08/0797 that at the time of making the application there were
only two flats above 20 & 22 Green Lanes. Following the previous refusals
and in response to submitted existing plans, an Enforcement investigation
was begun and following a visit to the application site was closed as only two
flats were found to be in existence. No subsequent application has been
received.

Relevant Planning Decisions

P14-01849PLA - Conversion of 1st floor residential unit into 3 self-contained
flats, 2 x 1-bed and 1 x 2-bed together with a first floor rear extension.
Refused, July 2014 for the following reasons:

1. The proposed conversion of the two first floor self-contained flats into
three self-contained flats, having regard to the floor area of the flats
designated on plan no. 20081028-PL06 as Flat-1 and Flat-2, would
provide a substandard form of residential accommodation and would not
meet the minimum space standards, as well as resulting in a generally
poor quality form of residential environment and an over intensive use of
this property, detrimental to the amenities of future occupiers as well as
the amenities of the surrounding area, contrary to Policy 3.5 of the
London Plan, Core Policy 4 of the Core Strategy, Policy DMD 5 of the
Development Management Document (Submission Version), Policy (Il)
H16 of the Unitary Development Plan, and the London Housing SPG.



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

41.1

4.2

Page 42

2. The proposed first floor rear extension, by virtue of its size, design, and
siting would result in a cumbersome appearance with elongated flank
along Grenoble Gardens, flat roof, and awkward stepped rear building
line, which would be out of keeping and character with the surrounding
area, and detrimental to the street scene, contrary to Policy (Il) GD3 of the
Development Management Document, Core Policy 30 of the Core
Strategy, Policy DMD 37 of the Development Management Document
(Submission Version), and Policy 7.4 of the London Plan.

3. Insufficient distance would be maintained between the proposed first floor
extension and the adjacent street tree, the proposed development will be
within the canopy of the tree which will result in inappropriate and
unnecessary pruning, to the detriment of the amenity value of the tree,
contrary to Policy DMD 80 of the Development Management Document
(Submission Version).

4. Due to the absence of a mechanism to secure the affordable housing and
education contributions required, along with an insufficient level of
information within the submitted viability assessment, the proposal fails to
provide a sufficient level of contribution to affordable housing, contribution
to associated education infrastructure, and associated monitoring fees,
contrary to Policies 3, 8 and 46 of the Enfield Plan and the associated
S106 Supplementary Planning Document.

TP/09/1004 - Conversion of first floor into 3 x 1-bed self contained flats
together with a first floor rear extension. Refused, September 2009.

TP/08/2246 - Self-containment and conversion of first floor into 3 affordable
residential flats involving first floor rear extension. Refused, March 2009.

TP/08/0797 - Conversion of 2 units into 1 retail unit on ground floor and 3 self
contained flats on first floor (comprising 2 x 2-bed and 1 x 1-bed) involving a
single storey rear extension, excavation of basement, first floor rear extension
and new shop front. Refused, July 2008.

TP/00/1524 - Part single storey, part 2-storey rear extension. Refused,
November 2000.

INV/09/0997 - Alleged flat conversion not as plans.
TP/08/1401 - Conversion of 2 units into one retail unit together with a single
storey rear extension, excavation of basement at rear and new shop front

(revised scheme). Granted with conditions, September 2008.

TP/02/0527 - Single storey rear extension. Granted with conditions, May
2002.

Consultations
Statutory and non-statutory consultees

None

Public



Page 43

4.2.1 Consultation letters were sent to ten neighbouring properties. No replies were

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

received.

Relevant Policy

The Development Management Document was adopted by the Council in
November 2014, the Unitary Development Plan now being superseded, as
such this analysis is on the basis of the policies listed below, these policies
are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and therefore it is considered
that due weight should be given to them in assessing the development the
subject of this application.

London Plan

Policy 3.3
Policy 3.4
Policy 3.5
Policy 3.8
Policy 3.9
Policy 3.10
Policy 3.11
Policy 3.12
Policy 3.13
Policy 5.1
Policy 5.2
Policy 5.3
Policy 5.7
Policy 5.13
Policy 5.14
Policy 5.15
Policy 5.16
Policy 6.13
Policy 7.1
Policy 7.4
Policy 7.6

Core Strateqy

CP2
CP3
CP4
CP5
CP6
CP8
CP9
CP20
CpP21

CP30

CP46

Increasing housing supply

Optimising housing potential

Quality and design of housing development
Housing choice

Mixed and balanced communities
Definition of affordable housing

Affordable housing targets

Negotiating affordable housing on schemes
Affordable housing thresholds

Climate change mitigation

Minimising carbon dioxide emissions
Sustainable design and construction
Renewable energy

Sustainable drainage

Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
Water use and supplies

Waste self sufficiency

Parking

Building London’s neighbours and communities
Local character

Architecture

Managing the supply and location of new housing

Affordable housing

Housing Quality

Housing Types

Meeting Particular Housing Needs

Education

Supporting Community Cohesion

Sustainable Energy use and Energy Infrastructure

Delivering Sustainable Water Supply, Drainage and Sewerage
Infrastructure

Maintaining and Improving the Quality of the Built and Open
Environment

Infrastructure Contributions

Development Management Document




Page 44

DMD2 Affordable Housing on Sites of less than 10 units
DMD3 Providing a Mix of Different Sized Homes

DMD5 Residential Conversions

DMD6 Residential Character

DMD8 General Standards for New Residential Development
DMD9 Amenity Space

DMD37 Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development
DMD38 Design Process

DMDA45 Parking Standards and Layout

DMD49 Sustainable Design and Construction Statements

5.5 Other Material Considerations
National Planning Policy Framework
London Housing SPG
Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) (2010)

6. Analysis

6.1 The main issues for consideration are the quality of accommodation to be
provided as a consequence of the conversion to 3 units, the impact of the
extension on the residential amenities of the surrounding neighbours, namely
No.24 Green Lanes and No.1 and Nos 2a-d Grenoble Gardens, the design
and appearance of the extension, and the impact on the adjacent street tree.

6.2 Conversion to 3 flats

6.2.1 Principle

6.2.2 The principle of the proposal would be compatible with Policies 3.3 and 7.5 of
the London Plan and Core Policy 2 of the Local Development Framework
insofar as it provides an addition to the Borough’s housing stock which
actively contributes towards both Borough specific and London-wide strategic
housing targets.

6.2.3 Whilst the proposal would result in a loss of 3-bed units, given their limited
internal area, poor layout, lack of communal areas, and complete lack of
amenity space, it is considered that the accommodation, being sited above
commercial premises, is more appropriately utilised as smaller units of
accommodation and therefore in this particular circumstance is considered
acceptable in principle.

6.2.4 Floor area

6.2.5 London Plan policy 3.5 requires that in the case of a 1-bedroom flat the gross
internal area (GIA) of the converted accommodation should be 50m?
According to the submitted plans flat 1 would occupy a floor area of 40.04m?*
This represents a significant shortfall of the required standard of 50m?
resulting in a poor form of residential accommodation to the detriment of
future occupiers, contrary to Policy DMD 5 of the Development Management
Document and Policy 3.5 of the London Plan, and the London Housing SPG.

6.2.6 According to the submitted plans flat 2 would occupy a floor area of 52.97m?"

this complies with the minimum standard. However, the London Housing



6.2.7

6.2.8

6.2.9

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

Page 45

SPG seeks a minimum provision of 23m? for living/dining/kitchen and only
17.45m? would be provided in the proposed flat 2. Further to this, whilst the
bedroom is of a reasonable size in terms of floor area alone, the London
Housing SPG seeks a minimum room width of 2.75m, but only a width of
2.35m is provided. The combination of these factors would result in a poor
standard and contrived form of accommodation, contrary to Policy DMD 5 of
the Development Management Document and Policy 3.5 of the London Plan,
and the London Housing SPG.

London Plan policy 3.5 requires that in the case of a 2-bedroom flat the gross
internal area (GIA) of the converted accommodation should be 61m? for 2
bed, 3 people. According to the submitted plans flat 3 would occupy a floor
area of 65.01m? which is comfortably above the required standard. Whilst
one of the bedrooms is below London Housing SPG standards in terms of
floor area, the shortfall is minimal and the room is of a regular shape. The
second bedroom has a limited width, but being a secondary bedroom would
be considered acceptable in this case. The proposed accommodation in flat 3
is therefore considered acceptable having regard to Policy DMD 5 of the
Development Management Document and Policy 3.5 of the London Plan, and
the London Housing SPG.

Car Parking, Servicing and Traffic Generation

Given the existing building contains 2 x 3-bed units, the conversion to 2 x 1-
bed and 1 x 2-bed self-contained units will not significantly increase trip
generation or parking demand especially given the locations proximity to
public transport (PTAL 3). Should planning permission be granted, conditions
would be required in relation to details of cycle parking provision and refuse
storage.

First floor rear extension

Impact on surrounding area

The extension is of a similar design to that refused under planning ref P14-
01849PLA, except that the current proposal has a depth reduced by 2.36m,
resulting in a depth of the flank return of 18.26m. The previous application
was refused by virtue of its size, design, and siting that was considered would
adversely affect the visual amenities of the street scene. On this section of
Green Lanes there are examples of properties extended at ground floor level,
there are no extensions at first floor level. The size, scale, and design of the
proposed extension would result in a cumbersome and overbearing
appearance with elongated flank along Grenoble Gardens and prolonged flat
roof, which would be out of keeping and character with the surrounding area,
and detrimental to the street scene, of particular concern given the siting of
the property on the corner of two roads, along with the lack of separation from
the public highway, which allows the rear element to be viewed from a
significant section of the immediate surrounding area, contrary to Core Policy
30 of the Core Strategy, Policy DMD 37 of the Development Management
Document, and Policy 7.4 of the London Plan.

Impact on neighbouring properties

The proposed extension is set away from the boundary with the adjoining
property No.24 Green Lanes and is designed in such a way that there would



6.3.5

6.3.6

6.4

6.4.1

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

Page 46

be minimal impact on the outlook to the residents of No.24, having regard to
Policy DMD 11 of the Development Management Document.

Impact on street tree

The application site is adjacent to a public footpath which contains a mature
silver maple tree, the siting of which is immediately adjacent to the proposed
first floor extension, with the canopy spreading to the area to be extended.
The Council’'s Tree Officer commented that adequate consideration has not
been given for the tree, the proposed development will be within the canopy
of the tree which will result in inappropriate and unnecessary pruning.
Furthermore there will be considerable shading and nuisance to the property
which will result in continued pressure from future residents to prune or
remove the tree. Adequate separation of the tree and building has not been
considered and this is contrary to DMD policy 80. The proposed first floor
rear extension is therefore considered unacceptable in terms of its impact on
the adjacent street tree, contrary to Policy DMD 80 of the Development
Management Document.

Sustainability

No energy statement has been submitted and as such does not address the
validation requirements set by the LPA. Building Regulations compliance
should be the baseline and then seeking an 8% improvement over this
threshold. However, this element could be secured by Condition and as such
is not considered to be a reason for refusal.

S106 Contributions

On 28™ November 2014 the Government introduced immediate changes to
the National Planning Practice Guidance to state that contributions for
affordable housing and tariff style planning obligations should not be sought
for small scale and self-build developments containing 10 units with a gross
area of no more than 1000sg.m. In the light of the implications for this for the
Councils adopted DMD policy, a report was taken to the Local Plan Cabinet
Sub Committee on 15" January 2015. At the meeting and in the light of
guidance issued, Members agreed the approach set out below for dealing
with planning applications and as the basis for future consultation on the
revised S106 SPD.

Education contributions will no longer be required for developments of less
than 11 units.

Affordable housing contributions may still be sought for developments of 1-9
units in accordance with the following:

Individuals and self-builders will be exempt from requiring to pay
affordable housing contributions;

Contributions may continue to be required from other developers
subject to viability testing, with a view to ensuring that contributions do
not result in a disproportionate burden and an obstacle to the delivery
of housing.

Affordable Housing



6.5.3

6.6

6.6.1

6.6.2

7.1

8.1

Page 47

In this instance we are seeking to establish whether the applicant constitutes
an individual, a self-builder or other developer to establish if an affordable
housing contribution might be required. An update will be provided at the
meeting.

CIL

As of the April 2010, legislation in the form of CIL Regulations 2010 (as
amended) came into force which would allow ‘charging authorities’ in England
and Wales to apportion a levy on net additional floorspace for certain types of
qualifying development to enable the funding of a wide range of infrastructure
that is needed as a result of development. Since April 2012 the Mayor of
London has been charging CIL in Enfield at the rate of £20 per sgm. The
Council is progressing its own CIL but this is not expected to be introduced
until spring / summer 2015.

The development does not involve the addition of more than 100sg.m of new
floor space and therefore would not be CIL liable.

Conclusion

The proposed first floor rear extension and conversion of the property to 3
flats is not considered to have overcome the previous reasons for refusal and
therefore would still result in an adverse impact on the appearance and
character of the surrounding area and street scene, detrimental impact on the
adjacent street tree, and would still result in the provision of substandard
residential accommodation to the detriment of future occupiers.

Recommendation
That planning permission be REFUSED for the following reasons:

1. The proposed conversion of the two first floor self-contained flats into
three self-contained flats, having regard to the floor area of the flat
designated on plan no. 20081028-PL06 as Flat-1, and the room sizes of
the flat designated as Flat-2, would provide a substandard form of
residential accommodation and would not meet the minimum space
standards, as well as resulting in a generally poor quality form of
residential environment and an over intensive use of this property,
detrimental to the amenities of future occupiers as well as the amenities
of the surrounding area, contrary to Policy 3.5 of the London Plan, Core
Policy 4 of the Core Strategy, Policy DMD 5 of the Development
Management Document, and the London Housing SPG.

2. The proposed first floor rear extension, by virtue of its size, design, and
siting would result in a cumbersome appearance with elongated flank
along Grenoble Gardens and prolonged flat roof, which would be out of
keeping and character with the surrounding area, and detrimental to the
street scene, contrary to Core Policy 30 of the Core Strategy, Policy DMD
37 of the Development Management Document, and Policy 7.4 of the
London Plan.

3. Insufficient distance would be maintained between the proposed first floor
extension and the adjacent street tree, the proposed development will be



Page 48

within the canopy of the tree which will result in inappropriate and
unnecessary pruning, to the detriment of the amenity value of the tree,
contrary to Policy DMD 80 of the Development Management Document.



salvossy » alosziTie

YyHYEINO'L wvkvaTnoL [ 00110

e e | renwves Fvos

9071d-8201800T ON '43¥

uov)d U004
3Sdl4 pasodoud

FIUIL SNIMVEQ,

LHO9-€IN
‘NOANOT
‘SANVT NIHYD 72-0T

103rodd

N
4 LNOHLIA Q3L TV LON ST
5 34 53 ON QNI 3 NI

@ ] s ALY INEWaEY [ATeoriny 3iV3 [eRonn
(— E .
il ES |
— - —
E 5 ES
— Hls
il ES |
EYRY E
E 3 ES
C Eo
- F S
[\ w E
™3 ES
&= ——
D 2
@) Es |
B E
el S |
C o
- FS
E o E
3 ES
C Eo
o
il ES
e E
— o~ =N
L3 Es
- E
E W
- FE 3
Cw Eo
3| &1
E E.
f— F O
o ES
e 1 E
o @9 Ex
-3 @L S
F » E
e E 5
F3

'SILVIOOSSY § GTODZLITE WOMS NOLLYSIHOHLNY.
NZLLRIA ONINIVLEO LS¥I4 LNOHLIM ONIMPAST SIHL WOM:

1Y0S LON 0 ‘SINFWIHINDY ALIHOHLNY T/207 ONY 30LLOVHA
40 3000 ‘SAUVANYLS HSILHE ‘SNOLLYINOZ ONITTING INZHAND
HLIM FONYQHODOY NI LNO Q3RO 38 OL ¥ SYIOM TIY.
‘SIONVAFHOSIC HO SNOISSINO ‘SHOHHT ANY 0 A¥IA0SI
NOGN ATILYIGINWI S3LVIDOSSY ¥ GTO9ZLTE WHOANI ONY.
‘FONZWWOO SYHOM 350438 LIS NO SNOLLIGNOO THHINS ONY.
SN NIPSQ SNOISNIWIO 1 O3HO OL 3 SHOLOVHLINOD FHL

‘S3LON

102'422Uu024@P|0BZH|G-04ul “ITYW3 0068 99€ 8020 3L
d8€ GN3 FITHSQYOALYIH "L3NAYE
"LN30S3D L4OWIAY 61

S3LVIDOSSY ¥ Q109Z1118

NV1d ¥00714 1S¥id d3SdOodd

[ f=—] [ — —
\'4 T A"
‘
Sonics Al QWL
L Wooxa38 (s
lleH &
ONILSIX3|SVY
NV1d 30074 Lspid
02 ¥3gNNN T
400d 1vid . i
U BunT kPt Buruig Bur ULy
L =
@) m
®) |
A cwolLL M|
ONILSIX] SV No0Ya38 I 5
NV1d 400714 1gid
2z ¥3ginN 400d 1vid
R lleH
E cwggoL
o nooya3a

4004 1v14 d3s0d0dd
ONILSIX3 HOLVIN OL MHOM MIld9 M3IN
ONILSIX3 HOLVYIN OL SMOANIM DAdN JLIHM d3zv19 3719n0Ad M3N

AIM

Y3d¥Y NOWWOD

2W1069 | (31doad €) woodQ3ag 2

€-40/4

2w /626 | (31d0ad2) woodQ3a 1

2-40/4

14014

OO0

— 2wyoor| (31403d1) Q3g1

VAV ANADHT




Page 50

Sa1v10ssY ¥ 10921178

HYHYEINO'L WyHYa oL [ 00L:LOEY

J00714
A8 A3I03HD | aenmvaa 39S
- NOILVAT13 3dIS d3SO0d0dd LS3T4 0L IONGSING

SUOI1 VAT
apIS pasodoud

FTLIL SNIMVEQ

LH9-¢IN
‘NOANOT
‘SANVT NIHYD T2-0T

103rodd

||_|I_I
==

ONLLTN NI SaLvID0SEVY 01092117

40 183809 K0T LoHLTA GaLLTHS4 Lo S0 N NOLLoHGGHAM
S Srnac S s b Siven
& o303 A8 GEAL] INGWANGAY [ALTSOHLNY] 3LV [SNOTSTASY
C E =
[ FS |
C5 EN
= F3 |
C Ew
- FS |
YN} E
L3 E 2
= F3 |
C Eo
— F3 |
F w E
F 3 ==
=1 ES |
C E X
- =N
"3 2
F3

TTT1
w9

‘WZI

—

TTTTTTTT
wz
kg ““SI

||||||II|||||II|
wg

ot ot fus’ |
1 T

p

a1

TTTT
wig

wor
=]
[

TITTTT
W/l

'SILVIDOSSY § GT09ZLITE WONS NOLLYSIOHLNY.
N3LLRIM ONINIVLEO LS¥Id LNOHLIM ONIMIS] SIHL WOY:

370 LON 0 ‘SINFWIHINDI ALIMOHLAY 17207 ONY FOLLOWA
40 3000 'SONYANVLS HSILI¥E ‘SNOLLYINO3H ONIGTING LNFHND
HLIM 3ONYQNO00Y NI INO T31Y 38 OL 3t SYHOM TV
‘SIIONYEFHOSID HO SNOISSING ‘SHOHYI ANY 40 ANIACOSI
NOAN AT3LYIGINWI SILVIDOSSY ¥ GT09ZLITE WHONI ONY.
'FONIWWO SYHOM 3HO038 TS NO SNOLLIGNOD TvH3NID ONY.
SN NI¥Q 'SNOISNWIA T O3HO OL 3 SHOLOVHLNOD FHL

S3ION
W0Y422uu024G@PI0BZ41G-04u! TIYW3 0068 99€ 8020 1L
48 GN3 FITHSQYO4LYIH LaNIVE @ @ @ @

"LN3DS3D LJOUI3AY 6T

S3LVIDOSSY ¥ Q109Z1I118




sa1v12085Y % Q0

004:10eY

ERES

YYHYEINO'L
A8 A3I03HD |

8071d-8201800C ON 434

UOI30AT
403y pasodoud

FTLIL SNIMVEQ

IHO-EIN NOILVAZ13 dVv3d™ d3Sd0dd

‘NOANOT

‘SANVT NIHYD T2-0T

INGWaNZWY [ALTO!

Page 51

-5 =5 |

. 5

O 1 E A

c ES |

= . A WA A TR TARBGIR SRR AR s asmasma R MR AT 2N
E 3| ES | INININININNRNN NN R UnUR RN R e= INNRINIB NIRRT
~ E LTI O AT AT LI AT T I IO T IT (O IT AT AT T |INARINIBARINIBARIN
- Eo INIBNIRIFRIN RN IR NN RN [INIBARIINIBANINIEAN

E ES [INIBSRINIBSRINIBSRIN(BARIN(BARIN(BARINIBARINIBARINIBARIN] JINARINIBA RN (IR |IBIRIN%
— S IBNRINIBIRIN(BNIN BN BRI NI BN N BRI N EARIN (AN IN N IR NN RI N BRI TN T T 7

= E o~ |INARINIBARINIBSRINIBSRINIBARIN(BARINIBAR IR RN RN RN N RN NNl %uc\s

= 33 I T O O O O O IO I USRI

|||||
w9
T
weT
1,
H
1,
H
A
H
1,
H
1,
H
1,
=
1,
H
m;
H
1,
H
1,
H
1,
H
1,
H
1,
H
1,
H

wz
T

Ill‘\ng”

‘d8€ GN3 FITHSQY04LY3H 'LINIVE
'IN3DSTAD 140WIIAY 61

S3LVIDOSSY ¥ Q109Z1I118




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53 A gen da—Her-8

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 4™ February 2015

Report of
Assistant Director, Planning,
Highways & Transportation

Contact Officer: Ward:
Andy Higham 020 8379 3848 Highlands
Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841
Ms A Treloar 020 8379 1259

Ref: 14/04222/HOU

Category: Householder

LOCATION: 46 Old Park View, Enfield, EN2 7EJ

PROPOSAL: Conversion of bungalow into a two storey 4 x bed family dwellling involving lowering the
external ground level to the back and side of the house.

Applicant Name & Address:
Mr Kyriacos Charalambous
46 Old Park View

Enfield

Middlesex

EN2 7EJ

United Kingdom

Agent Name & Address:
Mr AMIR FAIZOLLAHI
Plan Drawing Service
Civic Centre

Silver Street

Enfield

London

EN1 3XE

RECOMMENDATION:

That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions.




Page 54

Ref: 14/04222/HOU LOCATION: 46 Old Park View, Enfield, EN2 7EJ,

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey Scale 1:1250

on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.
ENF’ELD& Ordnance Survey License nhumber 100019820

Council




11

1.2

2.1

2.2

3.1

Page 55

Site and Surroundings

The subject site is located on the eastern side of Old Park View between
Slades Hill and Old Park Road. It has a regular shape and is approximately
632m? in area. It has a natural slope from northeast (rear) to southwest (front)
and contains a bungalow with rear garage and shed.

The site is located within an established residential area. The bungalow forms
part of a consistent row between No. 34 and 46. The property immediately
adjoining to the south (No. 54 Old Park View) and those on the opposite side
of the road are predominately detached two-storey dwellings of different
styles.

Proposal

The application seeks planning permission for alterations and additions to the
existing bungalow to create a two-storey dwelling, including:

e A first floor extension.
e A two-storey side extension.
e Alterations to the fenestration and the external materials.

The plans have been amended during the course of the application to provide
a more resolved architectural design and details of the proposed excavation
within the existing building to lower the finished floor level.

Relevant Planning Decisions

14/03330/HOU: Alterations and additions to the existing bungalow to provide
a two-storey dwelling refused 14 October 2014 on the following grounds:

e The proposed development, by virtue of its excessive eaves and ridge
height, would fail to provide an appropriate graduation between the
neighbouring dwellings and would therefore disrupt the rhythm of
development in the street scene contrary to Policies 7.4 and 7.6 of the
London Plan, Policy 30 of the Core Strategy, and Policies 6 and 8 DMD
Submission Version.

o The proposed development, by reason of its overall design, would detract
from the character and appearance of the property and the surrounding
area contrary to Policies 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan, Policy 30 of the
Core Strategy, and Policies 6, 8 and 13 DMD Submission Version, and
Policies (II) H12 and (II) GD3 of the UDP Saved Policies.

e The proposed development, by virtue of the excessive level of
hardstanding, would detract from the character and appearance of the
property and the street scene as a result of the loss of the front garden
contrary to Policies 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan, Policy 30 of the Core
Strategy, and Policy 8 DMD Submission Version.

e The proposed development, by reason of its excessive bulk and mass,
would adversely affect the amenity of No. 44 through loss of light and
outlook to the adjoining side dormer contrary to Policy 7.6 of the London
Plan, Policy 4 of the Core Strategy, and Policies 6 and 8 DMD Submission
Version.



3.2

4.1

41.1

4.2

42.1

4.2.2

5.1

5.2

Page 56

The development proposed as part of this application was larger in scale and
involved maintaining the existing ground floor level and therefore the
extended dwelling would have stood above the height of the adjoining house
at No.54 Old Park View. In addition, the previous application included the
proposal to resurface the majority of the front garden. The surfacing of the
front garden does not form part of the current application as the works can be
carried out without the need for planning permission providing the surfacing
material used is permeable or the surface drains to a permeable area.

Consultations

Statutory and non-statutory consultees
None.

Public response

Consultation letters were sent 14 adjoining and nearby occupiers. Re-
consultation has taken place with all neighbours following the receipt of
revised plans.

Following the original consultation 3 letters of objection were received.
Following re-consultation a further two objections have been received. The
objections raised to the revised scheme can be summarised as follows:

e The proposal development would detract from the character and
appearance of the street scene.

e Loss of light.

e Loss of privacy.

e Concern regarding the accuracy of the plans and the level of detail
provided, and how this may affect the end building, the impact on the
street scene and the neighbours’ amenity.

e Concern that the existing bungalow cannot support the proposed
alterations and additions, and that it may be entirely demolished and
rebuilt.

e Damage to the adjoining properties and restricted access during
construction.

e Excessive noise, pollution, dust and dirt during construction.

e The existing bungalow should be retained; the proposed development
would set an undesirable prescient for future development within the
street.

Relevant Policies
London Plan

Policy 7.4 Local character
Policy 7.6 Architecture

Core Strateqy

Policy 4 Housing quality
Policy 30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open
environment



5.3

5.4

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Page 57

DMD Policies

DMD 6 Residential character

DMD 8 General standards for new residential development
DMD 13 Roof extensions

DMD 14 Side extensions

DMD 37 Achieving high quality and design-led development
DMD 38 Design process

Other Relevant Policy Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Policy Guidance

Analysis

Principle

The adopted policies encourage the maintenance and enhancement of
existing housing stock. However, proposals must also be assessed in relation
to material considerations such as impact on the character of the surrounding

area and impact on the neighbours’ amenity.

Impact on the character of the surrounding area

Height, bulk and mass

DMD6 and DMD8 require residential development to be of an appropriate
scale, bulk and mass having regard to the existing pattern of development
and character typologies.

The applicant has provided a street scene drawing to show that the eaves of
the extended dwelling would match those at No. 54 adjoining and that the
ridge would provide an appropriate graduation in height between the adjoining
buildings. The finished floor level of the dwelling is to be lowered, taking
advantage of void space that presently exists beneath the existing floor. This
enables the additional accommodation to be achieved at first floor level, whilst
respecting the eaves and ridge height of the adjoining dwelling.

It is considered that first floor addition with hip roof and the two-storey side
extension with mono-pitch roof would provide an appropriate design response
with regards to scale, bulk and mass and sit comfortably within the
established street scene.

Terracing effect
DMD14 requires that side extensions to residential properties maintain a 1m
distance from the adjoining property at first floor level so not to create a

continuous facade or terracing effect.

The two-storey side extension would comply with this policy and maintain a
1m distance from No. 44.

Design



6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

Page 58

The plans have been amended during the course of the application to provide
a more resolved architectural design.

The amended plans show that the profile of the roof and the eaves and ridge
heights would be in keeping with the adjoining buildings. The two-storey side
extension would be setback from the front wall of the existing building to
present a recessed, subservient addition. The external materials including
plain roof tiles, brickwork on the ground floor and render on the first floor
would reference the adjoining building at No. 54. The style and proportion of
the doors and windows would be appropriate to the building.

Impact to neighbours

The proposed alterations and additions would not increase the depth of the
existing building. They would increase the height and the width (towards No.
44).

Overshadowing

The proposed alterations and additions would not adversely affect the
neighbours’ amenity through loss of light having regard to the orientation of
the plots, the shadow cast by the existing buildings, and the proposed bulk
and mass.

Light and outlook

No. 54 has a ground floor obscure glazed laundry window and a first floor
obscure glazed bathroom window on the flank elevation opposite the site. The
first floor extension would not unreasonably affect the light or outlook to/from
these obscure glazed non-habitable room windows.

No. 44 has a side dormer setback 2.8m from the common boundary which is
the only source of light and outlook to Bedroom 1. The two-storey side
extension would maintain a 1m distance from the common boundary and
have a mono-pitch roof so as not to unreasonably affect the light or outlook
to/from this side dormer.

Privacy

The proposed alterations and additions would not include any first floor
habitable room windows on the flank elevations. It is noted that the first floor
extension would include a bathroom window on the southeast elevation
(opposite No. 54). However, this is not a habitable room and a condition is
recommended to ensure that it is obscure glazed.

Other Issues raised

Plans

The objectors have raised concern regarding the accuracy of the plans and
the level of detail provided. There is no reason to doubt the accuracy of the
plans submitted.

Structural integrity of the existing building



6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

7.1

Page 59

The objectors have raised concern regarding the structural integrity of the
existing bungalow and whether the proposed alterations and additions could
be constructed without completely demolishing the existing building.
However, the submitted plans confirm that the existing four external walls are
to be retained, extending them upwards to achieve the necessary height. The
applicant advises that the scheme has been designed to ensure compliance
with the Building Regulations to ensure the resultant structure is sound.

Construction management issues

The objectors have raised concerns regarding damage to the adjoining
properties and restricted access during construction, as well as excessive
noise, pollution, dust and dirt during construction. The impact of construction
activities on neighbouring properties are recognised. However, this is a
domestic extension. The impacts of additional noise, dust and dirt are
temporary in nature and are not grounds for refusing planning permission.
The structural impacts of construction works on neighbouring properties are a
matter to be dealt with at Building Regulations stage and/or under Party Wall
Legislation.

Loss of the existing bungalow

The objectors have also raised concern regarding the loss of the existing
bungalow. The existing property is not protected through listed building or
conservation area designation. The character of the immediate area is mixed,
comprising both bungalows and two storey houses. Indeed the immediately
adjoining property at No.54 comprises a two storey house. Accordingly, it is
considered that the extension of the property as proposed will not undermine
the character of the area.

Community Infrastructure Levy

As of April 2010, legislation in the form of Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL) Regulations 2010 (as amended) came into force which allow ‘charging
authorities’ in England and Wales to apportion a levy on net additional
floorspace for certain types of qualifying development to enable the funding of
a wide range of infrastructure that is needed as a result of development.
Since April 2012, the Mayor of London has been charging CIL in Enfield at
the rate of £20 per sgm. The Council is progressing its own CIL but this is not
expected to be introduced until spring / summer 2015.

The proposed alterations and additions would increase the floor area of the
existing bungalow by approximately 131.5m? (existing 89.5m?; proposed
221m?). The CIL calculation based on the current index figure is therefore
(£20 x 131.5m? x 237)/223 = £2,795.11.

Conclusion

In conclusion, the proposed alterations and additions would provide an
appropriate design response and make a positive contribution to the street
scene in accordance with Policies 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan, Policies 4
and 30 of the Core Strategy, and Palicies 6, 8, 13 and 14 of the Development



8.1

Page 60

Management Document. They would not adversely affect the neighbours’
amenity through loss of light, outlook or privacy in accordance with Policies 8,
13 and 14 of the Development Management Document.
Recommendation
That planning permission be GRANTED subiject to the following conditions:
1. Approved Plans
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved plans, including any plans that may have been revised, as

set out in the attached schedule which forms part of this notice.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper
planning.

2. Materials to Match

The external finishing materials shall match those used in the construction
of the existing building and/or areas of hard surfacing.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance.

3 No Additional Fenestration
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, or any amending Order, no
external windows or doors other than those shown on the approved
drawings shall be installed without prior approval from the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of adjoining properties.

4 Obscure glazing

The glazing serving first floor bathroom of the development indicated on
drawing No 003 rev D shall be fixed shut to a height of 1.7m above the
floor level of the bathroom and in obscured glass with an equivalent
obscuration as level 3 on the Pilkington Obscuration Range. The glazing
shall not be altered without the approval in writing of the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining and
neighbouring properties.

5. Time Limited Permission

The development to which this permission relates must be begun no later
than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the decision
notice.

Reason: To comply with the provisions of S.51 of the Planning &
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.



¥L0ZI0L0Z  ajeq 1ueliozie sy fq umeig
v ez 00k:L 0G:h sleog
a
uolsiney 200 éma ‘oN Buimeig
d3sodoydd

apiL Bumeig

3L ZNI MSIA SiEd PIO 9%
108/01d

snoquiejeleyQ sooeuAy] I
juald

[rouno)

a3idNT

“oeng sonS
1965 08 Od
soas Bumeiq ueld

¥OO014 ANNOYO ONILSIX3

052} NY1d ¥20078 a3S0d0dd

zrooucae

+noouze

Page 61

Hoowve

w144

re

E o —

0018

9629 22} 0180 191 10 966 -IMAWEd I ACE WpoTmMM woy
18p{00G UOREULIOJU] 0} Jajo1 3SER] "BlIS UO SB0UBIWOO }10M 8:09q pajdope aq Jsnw
aunpaooid [lem Aed sy "sjaumo Buiulolpe woyy Juswaaibe [eulo) ulelqo pue Aou
Jsnw Jaumo Buipjing 8y 9661 10V IIEAM AWed auj uiyym |ley Aew syiom pasodoid ay |
“sBuimep ay) Jo pajess aq

0} aJe suoisuawiIp oN *(3g7) Juabe ay Jo uojuae ay) 0} Jybnoiq sapuedasosip Aue
PUE JIS UO Pa03LD 8q O} SIOMBS PUE SUOISUSWIP [y "JUSSUOD UaHM
ajoym ul Jo ped uj paonposda aq Jou snw pue jybukdoo s) ubisap pue Bumelp siyL

»o L™

®0 gop o

NOILYAZ13 ONIOV4 HLNOS d3S0d0dd

gy

NOILYAZT3 ONIOV4 HLYON d3S0d0dd

e

a
e ok 90

NOILVAZ13 ONIOVH 1SIM d3S0d0¥d

ey




¥L0ZI0LI0Z  ojeq

YelozieS Jwy £q umeig ki T

o> ezg 00L:L 0g:L aleog

NOILYAZT3 ONIOV4 1SIM d3S0d0¥d
uoisiney €00 6ma

*oN Buimeig

a

a3s0d0oyd

opiL bumeiq

3L ZN3 MSIA Nied PIO 9%
108lold

snoquiejesey sooeLAy JN

a1

[1ouno) ARG playuaIoauCa BulpING

i T~
AT3IANT  cscossoorm siveossiss ool

onieg Bumesq veld

RS [t i) i

05z1:L 2e9s, <@ i

! ¥OOT4 ANNOYO 3SOdOHd
i
oL
© J
QL
(op —
© —
(a8 — .
NV1d 4008 4350d0ud Y0074 LS¥l4 03S0dONd —
I — I i T
p | — e Ma = | i
ﬂ, u i |
| | R = |
,, [ — |
= |
7 ﬂ, H |
,, !\JH V wooy
, .
ﬂ, |
ﬂ, |
N , . |
b O 2ncoxcss : ' +
,, [ - |
| | ‘
, | g
| , - : - ﬁ :
9E29 221 0£80 [2.L 40 966 -{lemAped i Aob widpommm woy ’,
181400 UOJBWIOU] 0} Jaja] 8SBS|d "SHIS U0 SS0UBLIWIOD YIOM 81048 pajdope 8q Jsnw ~
ainpadoud |lem Aued 8y “spsaumo Buluiofpe woyy uswasibe [eusoj uleiGo pue Aou
1snw Jaumo Buipling 8y 9661 10V I1eM Aled U ulym e} Aew ssom pasodoud ay)

“sBuimelp ay} Jo pajeds aq
J4Bnoq serouedasosip Aue
18SU00 UaluM Joud noyym
j00 s1 ubisap pue Bumesp siyL

0} 212 SuojsuaWIp ON "(3g7) Juabe ay Jo uoju:
PUE 8IS UO PaXdayd aq O} SIaMas pUe SUOIS
Uy paonpoudal aq 10U SN pue

ay




Page 63

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 4" February 2015
Report of Contact Officer: Ward:
Assistant Director, Planning, Andy Higham 020 8379 3848 Southgate Green
Highways & Transportation Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841

Ms M Demetri 02083796843

Ref: 14/03614/FUL Category: Full Application

LOCATION: Land Adjacent To 2 The Mall , London, N13 4AU

PROPOSAL: Redevelopment of site by the erection of a two storey 3-bedroom dwelling involving demolition
of existing garages.

Applicant Name & Address: Agent Name & Address:
Mr Palazzetti Miss Timea Nacsa
c/o agent 14 Regents Wharf
United Kingdom All Saints Street
London
N1 9RL

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions.

Note for Members: This application would normally be dealt with under delegated powers but it is referred to
Planning Committee for consideration at the request of Councillor Anderson due to local objection.

?







11

1.2

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

41.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.2

421

Page 65

Site and Surroundings

The site originally formed part of the curtilage of No.149 Fox Lane and was
previously occupied by a single storey garage. It is located adjacent to 2 The
Mall and is approximately 0.023 ha in size. The site is within a residential
area, featuring a number of Edwardian dwellings including 149 Fox Lane, a
three storey dwelling built in an Edwardian style to the east and 2 The Mall
adjacent to the west. The rear garden of 147 Fox Lane is to the south of the
site. The Mall features both single fronted and double fronted Edwardian
houses in various architectural designs.

Some trees and the single storey garage have now been removed from the
site. Neither required the prior consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Proposal

The proposal is for the erection of a detached 3 bedroom Edwardian style
house with associated amenity at the rear and a single car parking space. All
access to the property would be from The Mall.

Relevant Planning Decisions

The last known relevant planning decision relating to this plot of land was in
the 1960s. A wall was approved along the flank boundary.

Consultations

Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Tree Officer

No objection raised in regards to the removal of the trees on the site and
there would be no harm to third party trees as a result of the proposal. It is
acknowledged that there is a Lime Tree on the public highway. This would not
be affected by the proposed development, given the vehicle crossing is to be

re-sited away from this tree.

Traffic and Transportation

No objection raised subject to conditions and informatives. These have been
detailed below.

Thames Water

No objection raised subject to the standard informatives.
Public response

Letters were sent to 11 adjoining and nearby residents. As a result 7
responses have been received and these raise the following objections:

- Close to adjoining properties
- Development too high

- General dislike of proposal

- Loss of light



4.2.2

4.2.3

5.0

5.1

Page 66

- Loss of parking

- Loss of privacy

- More open space needed on development
- Noise nuisance

- Out of keeping with character of area

- Over development

- Strain on existing community facilities

- Cramped form of development

- Traffic

- Construction issues

- Over development

- Implications with the junction with The Mall and Fox Lane
- Loss of trees

- Garage has already been demolished

- Trees have been removed

- The site is too small

- Issues with how the proposal has been addressed
- The depth of the amenity is not acceptable
- Impact to residential amenity

- Impact to visual amenity

- Issues in regards to sight lines

Petition

Two petitions objecting to the application have been received. One petition
had 56 signatures. The other petition had 7 signatures.

Fox Lane Association

The Fox Lane Association has raised the same concerns as the surrounding
neighbours.

Relevant Policy

The London Plan

3.1
3.3
3.4
3.5
3.6
3.8
3.9
3.10
3.11
3.12

3.13
3.14
51
52
53
6.9
6.11
6.13

Ensuring equal life chances for all

Increasing housing supply

Optimising housing potential

Quality and design of housing developments

Children’s and young peoples play and informal recreation facilities
Housing choice

Mixed and balanced communities

Definition of affordable housing

Affordable housing targets

Negotiating affordable housing on individual private residential and
mixed use schemes

Affordable housing thresholds

Existing housing

Climate change mitigation

Minimising carbon dioxide emissions

Sustainable design and construction

Cycling

Smoothing traffic flow and tackling congestion

Parking



Page 67

7.4 Local character
7.6 Architecture
7.19 Biodiversity & access to nature

52 Core Strategy

CP2: Housing supply and locations for new homes
CP3: Affordable housing

CP4: Housing quality

CP5: Housing types

CP20 Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure
CP21: Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage
infrastructure

CP24: The road network

CP30: Maintaining and enhancing the built environment
CP36: Biodiversity

CP46: Infrastructure contributions

5.3 Development Management Document

DMD2 Affordable Housing for Developments of less than 10 units
DMD3 Providing a Mix of Different Sized Homes

DMD6 Residential Character

DMD7 Development of Garden Land

DMD8 General Standards for New Residential Development
DMD9 Amenity Space

DMD10 Distancing

DMD37 Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development
DMD38 Design Process

DMD45 Parking Standards and Layout

54 Other Relevant Policy

NPPF

Section 106 Supplementary Planning Document
NPPG

Housing SPG

6.0 Analysis

6.1 Principle

6.1.1 The site is situated to the rear of 149 Fox Lane and formed part of its garden
area, accommodating a garage. Policy DMD7 seeks to protect and enhance
the positive contribution gardens make to the character of the Borough. The
policy advises that development on garden land will only be permitted if all of
the following criterial are met:



6..1.2

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

Page 68

a. The development does not harm the character of the area;

b. Increased density is appropriate taking into account the site context in
terms of its location, accessibility and the provision of local infrastructure;

c. The original plot is of a sufficient size to allow for additional dwellings
which meets the standards in DMD 8 ‘General Standards for New
Residential Development’ (and other design policies);

d. The individual plot sizes, orientation and layout created are appropriate
to, and would not adversely impact on the residential amenity within the
development, or the existing pattern of development in that locality;

e. An adequate amount of garden space is retained within both of the
individual plots in accordance with the minimum amenity space standards
(DMD9’Amenity Space’), and the role of each space is enhanced to
contribute towards other plan objectives such as biodiversity, green
corridors and networks; flood risk; climate change; local context and
character; and play space;

f.  The proposals would provide appropriate access to the public highway.

It is considered for that reasons set out below that the proposal would comply
with this policy, insofar that the proposal fits within an existing pattern of
development, amenity, distancing and parking requirements are met and the
development represents a sustainable use of the land. Further, the proposal
would be compatible with Policies 3.3 and 7.5 of the London Plan and Core
Policy 2 of the Local Development Framework insofar as it provides an
addition to the Borough’s housing stock which actively contributes towards
both Borough specific and London-wide strategic housing targets.
Accordingly, the principle of the erection of a detached dwelling on this site is
considered acceptable. However, this position must be qualified in relation to
other material considerations including: achieving an appropriate residential
mix in keeping with the character of the area; adequate internal floor space
and layout; servicing; parking provision and residential amenity.

Impact on Character of Surrounding Area

The proposal would be detached with a double frontage which is similar to the
proportions of the semi-detached properties along the road, with a width of
9.5m. The dwelling house would have the same eaves height and ridge
height as 2 The Mall. In regards to bulk and massing, the proposal would be
acceptable as it is similar to those in its surroundings.

The design of the proposed family house would be consistent with existing
dwelling houses within the area. The proposal would have bay windows,
gables and decorative timberwork. Such features are acceptable. Details of
finishing materials can be secured by way of a condition.

The proposal would result in a new dwelling house adjoining 2 The Mall with a
1.5m separation distance between the dwellings to maintain the detached
nature of 2 The Mall. This separation distance is deemed to be acceptable as
the majority of separation distances along The Mall are much narrower. The
separation distance between the existing dwelling at No. 149 Fox Lane and
the flank elevation of the proposed house " is 11m, which complies with the
requirements of the DMD.



6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.4

6.4.1

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

Page 69

Housing Mix and Floorspace

The most recent Borough housing needs assessment demonstrates that
whilst there is a need for all sizes of unit, that need is greatest for larger
dwellings, particularly three and four bed houses. Additionally, The National
Planning Policy Framework focuses on the delivery of housing including the
provision of larger family units. The proposal is for one three bedroom
dwelling house for which there is a need within the Borough. Therefore, the
proposal adheres to the identified housing needs of the Borough and thus
complies with Policy 5 of the Core Strategy, as well as DMD5 of the
Development Management Document.

The London Plan now contains minimum standards for the size of new
residential accommodation that replaces the Councils Supplementary
Planning Guidance. Below is a table showing the comparison of the proposed
scheme and the minimum floor area required by the London Plan

House Type GIA (based on | GIA — London Plan
measurement of plans) | 2011 (sq m)
(sq m)

1 3b4p 100 87

The proposed dwelling would exceed the minimum floor space standards and
therefore is acceptable. The proposal would comply with policy 3.5 of the
London Plan (including REMA), CP4 of the Core Strategy, DMD8 of the
Development Management Document, The Mayor of London Housing
Supplementary Planning Guidance as well as the NPPF.

Amenity Space Provision

Amenity space provision is provided for the dwelling at 95 sq.m and this
exceeds DMD requirements. It should also be noted that there is sufficient
amenity space remaining for the existing dwelling at 149 Fox Lane having
regard to Policy DMD 9 of the Development Management Document. A
conditions is recommended to require details of landscaping of the garden
area to ensure an appropriate setting and enhance the biodiversity of the site.

Impact on Neighbouring Properties

A 45 degree line and a 30 degree line has been drawn from the mid- point of
the ground floor and first floor window at 2 The Mall and there is no breach of
either line. It will be noted that due to the set- back relative to the rear
elevation of 2 The Mall, the proposal would not have a material impact on
daylight and sunlight to habitable rooms at this property nor would it result in
overshadowing of adjoining gardens.

The first floor layout has been designed so that there are no habitable rooms
at this level within the rear elevation; all windows are to bathrooms and a
condition can be attached to ensure these are obscure glazed. This would
ensure that privacy and overlooking to number 147 Fox Lane is safeguarded.
Overall, no objection is raised in regards to impact to residential amenity.




6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

Page 70

Highways

The Council's DMD Policy 45 and the London Plan Policy 6.13 require a
minimum of one car parking space to be provided for a three-bed dwelling.
As such the proposed driveway parking space for one vehicle complies with
the Policies.

No off-street car parking is recorded on the application form in connection
with no 149 Fox Lane, although this current application will lead to the loss of
at least two off street parking spaces that previously existed in a double
garage serving this property. The London Plan standards are expressed as
maximums and allow for no car parking provision where appropriate. It is
acknowledged that the area experiences a relatively high level of car parking
demand as a result of the limited off street provision. The loss of car parking
for no 149 Fox Lane and addition of a new property, with off street parking,
would not result in an unacceptable increase in demand to the extent that the
application should be refused. Therefore the application is not contrary to
DMD policy 45 and London Plan policy 6.13.

A new crossover would need to be created from the public highway (The
Mall). The principle of the access and its location is acceptable and meets
the required visibility standards. However, as only indicative plans were
submitted, a condition should be attached requiring the detailed design of the
crossover to be agreed by the Council and implemented before the
development is occupied.

Details of any means of enclosure, cycle provision, refuse provision and
landscaping can be secured by way of a condition. Such conditions have
been imposed to satisfy the requirements of the DMD and the London Plan.

Section 106

On 28™ November 2014 the Government introduced immediate changes to the
National Planning Practice Guidance to state that contributions for affordable
housing and tariff style planning obligations should not be sought for small scale
and self-build developments containing 10 units with a gross area of no more than
1000sq.m. In the light of the implications for this for the Councils adopted DMD
policy, a report was taken to the Local Plan Cabinet Sub Committee on 15"
January 2015. At the meeting and in the light of guidance issued, Members
agreed the approach set out below for dealing with planning applications and as
the basis for future consultation on the revised S106 SPD.

Education contributions will no longer be required for developments of less than
11 units.

Affordable housing contributions may still be sought for developments of 1-9 units
in accordance with the following:

o Individuals and self-builders will be exempt from requiring to pay
affordable housing contributions;



6.5.3

6.6

6.6.1

6.7

6.7.1

6.7.2

6.7.3

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

Page 71

e Contributions may continue to be required from other developers subject
to viability testing, with a view to ensuring that contributions do not result in
a disproportionate burden and an obstacle to the delivery of housing.

In this instance the applicant is considered to be an individual and thus the
scheme would not be required to provide a contribution towards affordable
housing or education.

Sustainable Development

Core Strategy Policy 4 States that new housing developments should seek to
exceed the Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 and should be built to
Lifetime Homes Standards. A Code for Sustainable Homes Pre — Assessment
has been submitted which indicates Code Level 4 can be achieved and an
Energy Statement has been submitted demonstrating that PV cells should be
used at the property in order to embrace the requirements of the Core
Strategy and Building Regulations. Details can be secured by way of a
condition to ensure that the sustainability of the development is achieved.

CIL

As of the April 2010, legislation in the form of CIL Regulations 2010 (as
amended) came into force which would allow ‘charging authorities’ in England
and Wales to apportion a levy on net additional floorspace for certain types of
qualifying development to enable the funding of a wide range of infrastructure
that is needed as a result of development. Since April 2012 the Mayor of
London has been charging CIL in Enfield at the rate of £20 per sgm. The
Council is progressing its own CIL but this is not expected to be introduced
until spring / summer 2015. In this instance the proposed residential
development would be subject to a £20 per square metre levy in accordance
with the GLA's CIL Charging Schedule.

The applicant has indicated that the new development would create 106.86
square metres in gross internal floor area. On this basis, the calculation and
sum arising would be as follows:

(£20/m2) x (106.86m2) x 237/223 = £2,267.65

Should permission be granted, a separate CIL liability notice would need to
be issued.

Conclusion

The subdivision of site and erection of a detached single family dwelling
house adjacent to 2 The Mall, increases the Borough’s housing stock and
would not detract from the residential character and amenities of the
surrounding area and in particular, the visual amenities or privacy of the
occupants of Fox Lane and The Mall. Further, the proposal would not give
rise to conditions prejudicial to the free flow and safety of traffic on the
adjoining highway.

Recommendation

That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:



CoNorONE

13.

14.

Page 72

C60 Approved Plans
C51A Time Limited Permission

Cco7 Details of materials
C09 Details of Hard Surfacing
Ci11 Details of Enclosure

C19 Details of Refuse Storage / Recycling Facilities

Cc24 Obscure glazing

C25 No Additional Fenestration

C17 Landscaping

C59 Cycle parking

C4 Details of development — access

Evidence confirming the development achieves Code rating of no less
than Code Level 4 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
LPA. The evidence required shall be provided in the following formats.

a) A design stage assessment, conducted by an accredited Code
Assessor and supported by relevant BRE interim certificate, shall be
submitted at pre construction stage prior to the commencement of
development.

b) A post construction assessment, conducted by an accredited Code
Assessor and supported by relevant BRE accreditation certificate shall
be submitted following the practical completion of the development and
prior to first occupation. The development shall be carried out strictly in
accordance with the details so approved, and shall be maintained as
such thereafter and no changes shall take place without the prior
approval of the LPA.

Reason: In the interests of addressing climate change and to secure
sustainable development in accordance with strategic objectives of the
Council and Policies 3.5, 5.2, 5.3 of the London Plan, CP4 of the Core
Strategy as well as having regard to the NPPF.

Following practical completion of works a final Energy Performance
Certificate shall be submitted to an approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Where applicable, a Display Energy Certificate shall
be submitted within 18 months following first occupation.

Reason: In the interest of sustainable development and to ensure that
the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that CO2 emission
reduction targets are met in accordance with Policy CP20 of the Core
Strategy, Policies 5.2, 5.3, 5.7 & 5.9 of the London Plan 2011 and the
NPPF.

The development shall not commence until an ‘Energy Statement’ has
been submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Submitted details will demonstrate the energy efficiency of the
development and shall provide for no less than a 8% improvement in
total CO2 emissions arising from the operation of a development and its
services over Part L of Building Regs 2013 utilising gas as the primary
heating fuel. Should Low or Zero Carbon Technologies be specified as
part of the build the location of the plant along with the maintenance and
management strategy for their continued operation shall also be
submitted. The Energy Statement should outline how the reductions



15.

16

Page 73

are achieved through the use of Fabric Energy Efficiency performance,
energy efficient fittings, and the use of renewable technologies.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the
details so approved and maintained as such thereafter.

Reason: In the interest of sustainable development and to ensure that
the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that CO2 emission
reduction targets are met in accordance with Policy CP20 of the Core
Strategy, Policies 5.2, 5.3, 5.7 & 5.9 of the London Plan 2011 and the
NPPF.

The development shall be implemented to accord with Lifetime Homes
standards. Prior to occupation of the development evidence confirming
compliance shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.  The development shall be maintained as such
thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the development allows for the future
adaptability of the home to meet with the needs of future residents
over their lifetime in accordance with Policy CP4 of the Core Strategy
and Policy 3.5 of the London Plan 2011.

The development shall not commence until details of surface drainage
works have been submitted and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The details shall be based on an assessment of the
potential for disposing of surface water by means of a sustainable
drainage system in accordance with the principles as set out in the
Technical Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework. The
drainage system shall be installed/operational prior to the first
occupation and a continuing management and maintenance plan put in
place to ensure its continued function over the lifetime of the
development.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the
details so approved and maintained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure the sustainable management of water, minimise
flood risk and to minimise discharge of surface water outside of the
curtilage of the property in accordance with Policy CP28 of the Core
Strategy, Policies 5.12 & 5.13 of the London Plan and the NPPF.



Page 74

This Plan includes the following Licensed Data: OS MasterMap Colour PDF Block Plan by
the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and incorporating surveyed revision

ilable at the date of ion. Reproduction in whole ar in part is prohibited without the
prior permission of Ordnance Survey. The representation of a road, track or path is no
evidence of a right of way. The representation of features as lines is no evidence of a
property boundary. ® Crown ight and database rights 2013. Survery
0100031673

BLOCK PLAN 1:500 Drawing no. 005
Land adjacent to 2 The Mall
London

N14 6LN

5m 10m 15m 20m

Scale: 1:500, paper size: Ad



Page 75

00T:T d[edS 2V ‘9215 Jaded N19 YN UOPUT] ‘J[eW UL Z 03 WaDefpe Pue :SS3IPpY aS

110 ‘ou Bumeiq

il @.ﬁ_mﬁ L@

22 =" =z il
=]z
=T | B

uojjeAs)3 juoiy pasodoid

=-{i =00 | ] 0
E SE T T

uojjeAd]3 juold Juauny



This page is intentionally left blank



Paqe 77 A conda o 10

L4 \3UI UL TLOTITT LV

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD
PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 4" February 2015
Report of Contact Officer: Ward:
Assistant Director, Planning, Andy Higham 020 8379 3848 Jubilee
Highways & Transportation Sharon Davidson 020 8379 3841

Mr Cuma Ahmet 020 8379 3926
Ref: P14-01733/PLA & P14-01735/ADV Category: Full Application

LOCATION: 41, Picketts Lock Lane, , London, N9 OAS,

P14-01733/PLA

PROPOSAL: Change of use of former builders merchants to a bus depot for the parking and operation of
the 107 buses, refurbishment of main office building, single storey detached building to provide a staff mess
room, installation of a bus wash and refuelling facility with associated plant and machinery and a 2m high
acoustic fence to part eastern boundary.

P14-01735ADV
PROPOSAL: Installation of a replacement free standing non illuminated sign to front entrance.

Applicant Name & Address: Agent Name & Address:
Tower Transit Operations Ltd J C Planning Consultants
Atlas Road, Park Royal 502, Birchwood One
London Dewhurst Road
Birchwood
NW106LG Warrington
WA3 7GB
RECOMMENDATION:

That subject to the referral of the application to the Greater London Authority (GLA) and no
objections being raised together with the completion of the section 106 agreement regarding the
issues set out above, the Head of Development Management/Planning Decisions Manager be
authorised to GRANT planning permission subject to conditions.




Page 78

Ref: P14-01733PLA & P14-01735ADV LOCATION: 41, Picketts Lock Lane, London, N9 OAS,

£
o

oo -.'
g’; etated

Rebroduced bv permission of Ordnanee urvey Scale 1:1250 North
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved. @
ENF({‘ELD; Ordnance Survey License number 100019820
ounci




11

1.2

13

2.1

2.2

3.1

Page 79

Site and Surroundings

The site comprises an undesignated employment site located to the north of
Picketts Lock Lane in the Jubilee ward of the Borough. The site is linear in
shape measuring approximately 1.16 hectares in area and is laid to concrete
hardstanding throughout. The site also accommodates four separate
buildings; a single storey gate house, a two storey office building and two pre-
warehouse buildings. The site has a single point of access/egress located on
the southern boundary, which links onto Picketts Lock Lane.

The general surroundings comprise a mix of land uses ranging from industrial
and employment to the south and west and open recreational and leisure
uses to the north and east. A golf course adjoins the northern boundary of the
site, with the eastern perimeter immediately abutted by the River Lee
Navigation Canal and William Girling Reservoir beyond. Deephams Sewage
Works and a small residential settlement of 58 dwellings are sited to the west,
with a further residential dwelling (Lock Keepers Cottage) and vehicle storage
business use to the immediate south.

The application site is currently undesignated employment land and is located
within the Central Leeside area. The site is also classified being within a
Flood Zone 2 and 3. Other site specific designations which are relevant
include Metropolitan Green Belt (comprising the River Lee Navigation and
Lee Valley Regional Park to the east); Site of Special Scientific interest
(SSSI) relating to the Chingford Reservoirs (of which William Girling Reservoir
is comprised within) and Site of Metropolitan Importance for Nature
conservation (SMINC) which comprises both William Girling Reservoir and
River Lee Navigation.

Proposal

The application seeks planning permission for a change of use from the
former builders merchants use to a bus depot (sui generis). Integral to the
change of use is the need to accommodate 107 buses in total, including
refurbishment of the main office building, a single storey detached building for
staff use, associated bus wash and refuelling plant and facilities and a 2
metre high acoustic fencing to part of the eastern boundary.

A further application for advert consent has also been submitted for a non-
illuminated sign to the entrance to the site. This is covered separately in this
report (LPA ref. P14-01735ADV).

Relevant Planning Decisions

A range of planning applications have been submitted, the majority of which
are associated with the use of the site for storage and warehouse uses.



4.1

41.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

4.1.6

4.1.7

4.1.8

Page 80

Consultations
Statutory and non-statutory consultees

Greater London Authority

No objections in principle to the development subject to relevant conditions
and/or s.106 obligations to secure the extension of the existing footway to the
site, and a travel plan. As the application falls within the Mayors Referral
Guidelines under Part 2 Category 2C(1)(f) (Major Infrastructure), any decision
made by the Council must be referred back to the Mayor for his consideration
before a decision can be issued.

Transport for London

No objections in principle. They advise that the location is ideal for a bus
depot from a strategic transport perspective. However, they recommend that
a travel plan and provision for disabled parking and electric car charging
points are secured.

Traffic and Transport

No objections subject to conditions to secure details of hard surfacing;
enclosures, parking and turning facilities, private parking facilities,
landscaping, refuse storage and cycle parking. In addition to the above
conditions, it is also requested that a pedestrian footway is provided along the
west side of Picketts Lock Lane including an extension to existing ‘keep clear’
restrictions at the junction of Picketts Lock Lane and Meridian Way.

Environment Agency

No objections subject to a planning condition to secure a drainage scheme for
the Vehicle Washing Bay before commencement of the development.

Environmental Health

No objections subject to inclusion of a planning condition to control bus
movements between the hours of 23:00hrs and 07:00hrs in order to mitigate
noise disturbance to neighbouring residential occupiers.

Natural England

No objections are raised but they recommend that biodiversity enhancements
are explored further by the applicants.

Ecology and Biodiversity

The Council's ecologist has not objected although requests planning
conditions to secure a landscaping scheme and biodiversity enhancements
and to ensure all works are carried outside of the bird nesting season.

Lee Valley Regional Park Authority (LVRPA)

No objections subject to the applicant providing additional footways in
Picketts Lock Lane; segregated and signed lane for cyclists along Picketts



4.1.9

4.2

421

4.2.2

Page 81

Lock Lane; measures to ensure light spillage is minimised to maintain dark
corridor for bats and landscaping along the Navigation boundary to augment
the existing planting.

English Heritage (Archaeology)

No objections as the proposals will have limited potential for impact on
archaeological assets.

Public response

Letters were sent to 55 adjoining and nearby residents. In addition a site
notice has been displayed on site. 22 Letters of objection have been received
raising the following objections:

- Noise increase from travelling buses;

- Traffic increase made worse by parked articulated lorries in Picketts Lock
Lane;

- Increased pollution and congestion as a result of increased traffic
movements;

- Impact on health from increased pollution

- Health and safety of pedestrians using Picketts Lock Lane;

- No pavements for pedestrians;

- Overflow car parking will occur;

- Picketts Lock Lane is difficult to walk along;

- Difficult to exit drive onto Picketts Lock Lane;

- Stationary lorries

- Level of traffic will take place at unsociable times of the day resulting in
noise disturbance to residents;

- Use of modern fleet to minimise noise impact is not guaranteed,;

- Previous use of the site did not generate the level of traffic the proposals
will and therefore cannot be a reliable comparison in terms of traffic;

- The surface of Picketts Lock Lane is already in a poor state and will be
worse off form increased traffic as a result of the proposals;

- No emergency action plan relating to the fuel storage depot;

- Use is not suitable for a residential area;

- Decrease value of properties;

- Junction onto Meridian Way is already an accident hotspot;

- Proposals have the potential to impact on our daily lives;

- Significant impact on wildlife and visual amenity;

- Plans should be scrutinised by the Highways Agency and Environment
Agency;

- Movement of buses will cause vibrations in my home;

- Vehicle movements indicated for the former use untrue;

- We will already be subjected to nuisance from the upgrade of Deephams
Sewage Works; and

- Poor facilities exist for cyclists.

Councillors for the Jubilee ward have also expressed concerns in respect of
the noise impacts on local residents as a result of the bus traffic using
Picketts Lock Lane and suggested preference for access to be provided via
Lee Park Way instead. They have also indicated that any job advertised



Page 82

should be restricted to Enfield only and that the applicant adopts all
technological advances available to limit noise disturbance.

Petition

4.2.3 In addition a petition has been received comprising 82 signatures. This raises
the following objections:

- Nosie nuisance at unsociable hours;

- Cause traffic management and road safety issues;

- Create pollution;

- Damage to environment; and

- Detrimental impact on visual amenity of the surrounding area.

5 Relevant Policy
5.1 London Plan

Policy 2.3: Growth areas and coordination corridors
Policy 2.7: Outer London: economy

Policy 2.8: Outer London: transport

Policy 2.16: Strategic outer London development centres
Policy 4.4: Managing industrial land and premises

Policy 5.1: Climate change mitigation

Policy 5.2: Minimising carbon dioxide emissions

Policy 5.11: Green roofs and development site environs
Policy 5.12: Flood risk management

Policy 5.13: Sustainable drainage

Policy 5.19: Hazardous waste

Policy 5.21: Contaminated land

Policy 5.22: Hazardous substances and installations
Policy 6.1: Strategic approach

Policy 6.2: Providing public transport capacity and safeguarding land for
transport

Policy 6.4: Enhancing London’s transport connectivity
Policy 6.8: Coaches

Policy 6.9: Cycling

Policy 6.10: Walking

Policy 6.11: Smoothing traffic flow and tackling congestion
Policy 6.12: Road network capacity

Policy 6.13: Parking

Policy 7.1: Local character

Policy 7.5: Public realm

Policy 7.8: Heritage assets and archaeology

Policy 7.14: Improving air quality

Policy 7.15: Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes
Policy 7.16: Green Belt

Policy 7.19: Biodiversity and access to nature

Policy 7.30: London’s canals and other rivers and waterspaces
Policy 8.2: Planning obligations

5.2 Core Strateqy



5.3

54

Page 83

CP13: Promoting economic prosperity

CP16: Taking part in economic success and improving skills
CP20: Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure
CP24: The road network

CP25: Pedestrians and cyclists

CP26: Public transport

CP28: Managing flood risk through development

CP30: Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open
environment

CP31: Built and landscape heritage

CP32: Pollution

CP33: Green belt and countryside

CP35: Lee Valley Regional Park and Waterways

CP36: Biodiversity

CP37: Central Leeside

CP46: Infrastructure contributions

Development Management Document

DMD23: New employment development

DMD37: Achieving high quality and design-led development
DMD38: Design process

DMDA41: Advertisements

DMD44: Preserving and enhancing heritage assets
DMDA45: Parking standards and layout

DMDA47: New roads, access and servicing

DMDA48: Transport assessments

DMD49: Sustainable design and construction statements
DMD50: Environmental assessment methods
DMD51: Energy efficiency standards

DMD55: Use of roof space/vertical surfaces
DMD59: Avoiding and reducing flood risk

DMD®60: Assessing flood risk

DMD61: Managing surface water

DMD64: Pollution control and assessment

DMDG65: Air quality

DMD66: Land contamination and instability
DMD67: Hazardous installations

DMD68: Noise

DMD®69: Light pollution

DMD75: Waterways

DMD76: Wildlife corridors

DMD78: Nature conservation

DMD79: Ecological enhancements

DMD81: Landscaping

DMD83: Development adjacent to the Green Belt

Other relevant policy/quidance

National Planning Policy Framework

National Planning Practice Guidance

Upper Lee Valley Opportunity Area Planning Framework
Proposed Submission Central Leeside Area Action Plan
S106 SPD



6.1

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

Page 84

Analysis
The main issues to consider are as follows:

- the principle of change of use;

- noise impact;

- visual appearance and impact on River Lee and Lee Valley Regional
Park;

- ecology;

- sustainability;

- traffic impact on local and strategic highways;

- proposed signage; and

- s.106 planning obligations and Community Infrastructure Levy.

Principle of change of use

The site is an undesignated employment site that has a long been associated
with commercial storage and distribution related activities. Up until 2013, the
site was occupied by a builder's merchant’s operation.

The site is undesignated employment land and lies within the Government's
London-Stansted-Cambridge-Peterborough corridor, the Upper Lee Valley
Opportunity Area and Central Leeside Area growth area. Strategic and local
policy interventions embedded in the London Plan, Upper Lee Valley Area
Planning Opportunity Framework, the Proposed Submission Central Leeside
Area Action Plan (CLAAP), including the Core Strategy, collectively seek to
strengthen the location’s industrial and employment role in order to support
existing business, attract new and emerging business sectors, support the
future communities of Meridian Water through job creation/opportunities and
achieve improved accessibility through better public transport provision,
including greater access for pedestrians and cyclists.

The proposed change of use would principally involve keeping buses onsite
and carrying out maintenance to those buses. Whilst the use would not strictly
fall within an employment categorisation, e.g., B1, B2 or B8, the nature of the
operations that would be involved are not too dissimilar to those normally akin
to uses within employment/industrial locations.

The proposals arise from the applicant’'s ambitions to expand its operations
following recent successful tenders for two new contracts from TFL, beginning
in February 2015. Initially, the two routes would comprise limited bus
numbers, with a view to expand the operations as new contracts are
awarded. The proposed use would create up to 340 new jobs comprising 300
driving staff, 18 cleaning/refuelling staff, 5 administrative/operational staff and
7 support employees.

Overall, it is considered that the proposed use would be compatible having
regard to its current land use categorisation and other similar existing uses in
the vicinity. In addition, the proposed use would support the long term
strategic aims and aspirations for the Upper Lee Valley Area and Central
Leeside as well as achieving the Mayor’s strategic aims to improve London’s
bus network. Therefore it is considered that the principle of change of use for



6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

6.3.5

Page 85

bus storage is considered to comply with Policies of the London Plan, Policies
ULVAOPF, Policies CLAAP, Palicies Core Strategy and DMD policies.

Noise and visual character

The concerns of neighbouring residents in respect of the increased potential
for noise disturbance that would be generated by buses travelling along
Picketts Lock Lane are acknowledged. To address this concern, the applicant
has provided a detailed survey based on the maximum capacity of buses
proposed (107 buses), throughout a 24 hr period, 7 days a week.

From the information contained in the noise report, it is considered that the
potential increase in noise disturbance is likely to be more noticeable during
the late evening and early morning hours (or 23:00hrs and 07:00 hrs), due to
lower levels of ambient noise, which in turn would result in noticeable harm to
residential occupiers. Combining this with the bus movement data provided
for the use, it has been noted that the greatest number of bus movements
would take place during these sensitive hours. Based on these
considerations, and following further negotiations with the applicant’s, it was
agreed that limits on bus movements (both arriving and departing) during the
hours identified above would be critical so that the amenities of nearby
residential occupiers can be safeguarded. The controls that would apply from
Sunday to Saturday are summarised below and a condition is recommended
to secure this. The proposed condition is based on the bus profile dated set
out in Table 5-1 (Run Out and Run In Profiles) set out in the Amended
Transport Assessment which are:

00:00hrs-00:59hrs: 3 buses
01:00hrs-01:59hrs: 6 buses
04:00hrs-04:59hrs: 3 buses
05:00hrs-05:59hrs: 5 buses
06:00hrs-06:59hrs: 7 buses

The applicant has indicated that no bus movements are planned between the
hours of 23:00hrs and 23:59hrs (Sun-Sat); 02:00hrs-02:59hrs (Sun-Sat) and
03:00hrs-03:59hrs (Sun-Sat). It is recommended that this is also secured
through a separate planning condition. With such conditions, bus movements
during the hours between 07:00hrs and 23:00hrs are unlikely to give rise to
noise disturbance that would be detrimental to neighbouring residential
amenities.

Also mindful of the applicant's requirement to establish an operational
maximum for this site, it is considered necessary, relevant and reasonable to
require ongoing noise monitoring to be carried out so that the impacts to
residents can be minimised. The nature, frequency and cost of such
monitoring can be secured through a S106 Agreement.

Whilst officers have noted that bus movements are likely to increase as the
depot reaches full operational maturity/capacity, it is considered that the
above recommended measures would provide a robust mechanism to
minimise any significant harm to neighbouring residential occupiers. At the
same time, these clear and defined limits would provide an established basis
upon which the operator can successfully plan forward in meeting its future
service obligations.



6.3.6

6.3.7

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

6.5

6.5.1

Page 86

With regard to matters relating to an individual's observations and/or
perception of Picketts Lock Lane and the anticipated impacts that increased
traffic movements will have in this respect, it is considered that there will be a
noticeable change particularly as the site has been vacant in recent years.
However, given that the site has an existing established use for
storage/warehouse use, which could be implemented uninhibited at any time,
including the comparative controlled nature of the proposed use, it is
considered that the extent of the impact would not result in detrimental harm
to the existing visual experience/perceptions of Picketts Lock Lane.

Overall, it is considered that subject to the inclusion of the above planning
conditions and obligation to carry out noise monitoring, the impact of the
proposed use on residents, having regard to noise disturbance, would be
acceptable. Equally, the impact on the visual character/perceptions of
Picketts Lock Lane as a result of additional traffic movements is also
considered acceptable.

Visual appearance and impact on adjacent River Lee Navigation and Lee
Valley Park

The site adjoins the River Lee Navigation and Lee Valley Park to its eastern
boundary. An extensive tree screen bounds the eastern boundary from its
most northern extent for a distance of approximately 145 metres before
reducing towards the Lock Keepers Cottage. The northern and western
boundaries are also significantly screened by trees and other vegetation.

Policies 75 and 83 of the DMD specifically focus on maintaining and
enhancing the waterfront character and interface of development adjoining
the Green Belt, specifically to ensure that intrusiveness and visual dominance
of buildings and uses are appropriately mitigated. Despite the applicant’s
comments concerning additional planting along this boundary, it is considered
that there remains significant opportunity to reinforce the boundary
particularly where it appears most bare. The proposed stone gabbions
provide an opportunity to support future greening of the boundary, although
the details provided do not demonstrate this. It is therefore recommended
that details of additional soft planting, incorporating the stone gabbions, are
secured by planning condition to ensure appropriate enhancement of the
boundary can be achieved.

With regard to the proposed single storey staff mess building, fuel tank facility
and bus wash housing, it is considered that none of these structures would
have an appreciable impact on the character or appearance of the navigation
or Green Belt, due to existing screening by existing buildings, combined with
their limited scale and siting towards the western boundary.

Overall, subject to securing additional planting along the eastern boundary of
the site, it is considered that there would be no further impact on the visual
amenity of the waterfront and Green Belt.

Ecology

The applicant has provided a revised survey of the impacts of the proposals
on bird and bat populations, focussing on the William Girling Reservoir and
River Lee Navigation. The survey indicates that the noise levels that would be



6.6

6.6.1

6.7

6.7.1

6.7.2

6.7.3

6.7.4

6.7.5

Page 87

generated by the proposed use would be of marginal significance to known
nesting bird populations. Equally, revised lighting plans have been provided
(refer DW Windsor Plan 11404-1-A) which propose two different lighting
options. Both schemes indicate that light spillage at the eastern boundary
would not exceed the limits considered acceptable for bats and other foraging
animals using the area. Therefore, it is considered that the impact of the
proposals on identified protected species is acceptable, subject to conditions
to secure recommendations of the Council’s Ecologist.

Sustainable design and construction

Officers remain in discussion with the applicants regarding the opportunities
for enhancing the sustainable design of the proposals. A verbal update will be
provided at the meeting.

Traffic impact and safety on local and strategic highways

Access and traffic generation

The proposals would not involve any alterations to the existing shared access
onto Picketts Lock Lane.

The Traffic and Transport Officer has reviewed the amended traffic
assessment provided by the applicant and whilst concerns are raised in
relation to the potential for bus conflicts and other road traffic at the junction of
Picketts Lock Lane and Meridian Way during the morning travel peak, he is
satisfied that subject to additional mitigation measures, to include extending
existing ‘keep clear’ restrictions, these concerns could be addressed. These
measures would be secured as planning obligations under a S.106
Agreement.

Overall, it is considered that impact on the local and strategic highway, having
regard to existing and proposed traffic movements, and road safety would be
acceptable.

Car and cycle parking

The proposals would provide 96 parking spaces in total of which 5 would be
reserved for visitors. Two spaces will be provided for disabled persons, sited
close to the refurbished office, and two spaces will incorporate electric vehicle
charging points. Parking is phased to correspond with buses leaving. This
arrangement is illustrated on plan drawing number 689-035, appended to the
appendix of this report. The proposed provision for electric vehicle charging
points falls below the recommended London Plan standards (a minimum 19
spaces would be required) although this can be addressed through a planning
condition. 20 cycle parking spaces will be located next to the gate house at
the front. The design of the cycle stands and shelter have been provided and
are compliant with London Plan recommended standards.

The request of the LVRPA to secure provision for a segregated cycleway
along Picketts Lock Lane, from its junction with Meridian Way to where it
meets the start of the national cycle route in the Lee Valley Park is noted.
However, it is considered that the delivery of the extended pedestrian footway
on Picketts Lock Lane is a higher priority and would also enable shared use
with cyclists.



6.7.7

6.7.8

6.8

6.8.1

6.9

6.9.1

6.10

6.10.1

7.1

Page 88

Overall, subject to a condition requiring the provision of more car charging
points, it is considered that there adequate car and cycle provision has been
provided to ensure limited on street parking outside of the site.

Pedestrian footways

Access arrangements for pedestrians and other modes of public transport are
currently limited. To support and encourage alternative modes, particularly
given the significant number of employees expected, it is considered
reasonable to require the provision of a continuous pedestrian footway from
the site to connect to Meridian Way to the west. Both the GLA and TFL have
also recommended that a travel plan be secured by planning condition in
order to encourage and support alternative sustainable modes of travel by
employees to the site. Should planning permission be given, it is
recommended that the provision of the footway is secured as a planning
obligation together with the need to submit and adhere to a travel plan.

Signage

The proposed signage would replace a similar sign already in situ. It would be
sited at the entrance into the site, measuring 2 metres in width by 1 metre in
height and mounted on poles. The sign would also be non-illuminated. The
proposed signage is considered to have an acceptable impact on existing
visual amenities and highway safety.

S106 obligations

Should planning permission be granted, it is recommended that planning
obligations are sought to secure; further noise monitoring, a pedestrian
footway from the site to Meridian Way, travel plan and extension of ‘Keep
Clear’ restrictions at the junction of Picketts Lock Lane and Meridian Way.

Community Infrastructure Levy

The application site was last occupied in 2013. Under the CIL Regulations (As
amended) the development proposals would only be liable in the
circumstances that the buildings onsite have not been occupied in the past 6
months in the last three years at the beginning of the application or if any new
buildings being provided would exceed 100 square metres (or more) in floor
area. Neither of these circumstances would be applicable in this case and
therefore the development is not considered liable.

Conclusion

The proposals would bring back into use a vacant and underused
employment site which would assist the creation of employment and reinforce
Central Leeside as a business destination as well as support the expansion of
bus infrastructure to meet the future projected need for London. The
proposals have been carefully designed to ensure that appropriate mitigation
has been incorporated, having regard to the sensitive nature of the location
close to the Lee Valley Park and River Lee Navigation Canal, neighbouring
residential amenities and the local and strategic highways. Subject to the
inclusion of the recommended conditions and planning obligations, the



7.2

8.1

Page 89

application proposals are acceptable and would comply with the above
mentioned adopted planning policies and strategic guidance.

The proposed new free standing non-illuminated sign would also have an
acceptable impact having regard to visual amenity and highway safety.

Recommendation

The Committee shall note that the following recommendations come in two
parts dealing with both the applications for the change of use planning
permission and advertisement consent. The recommendations are as follows:

A. That subject to the referral of the application to the Greater London
Authority (GLA) and no objections being raised together with the
completion of the section 106 agreement regarding the issues set out
above, the Head of Development Management/Planning Decisions
Manager be authorised to GRANT planning permission subject to the
following summarised conditions:

Time Limit

Approved plans

Details of all enclosures

Details of soft landscaping enhancements to eastern boundary
Restriction to travelling/operational movements in morning
Restriction on hours of movement

Details of refuse/recycling storage

Details of vehicle washing bay

Biodiversity enhancements

0. Electric Vehicle Charging points (19 in total)

BOO~NOOMWNE

B. That advertisement consent is granted subject to the following condition:

(1) This consent permits the display of the advertisement(s) for a period of
five years beginning with the date of this notice, after this period the use of the
site for the display of the advertisement shall cease and the advertisement
and any supporting structure shall be removed and the land/building on which
the advertisement is displayed shall be reinstated. (2) The advertisement(s)
displayed shall be maintained in a clean, tidy and safe condition. (3)
Notwithstanding this consent no advertisement shall be displayed without the
permission of the owner of or the permission of any other person with a
controlling interest in the land. (4) Notwithstanding this consent no
advertisement shall be displayed so as to obscure or hinder the interpretation
of any road traffic sign, railway signal or aid to navigation by road, railway,
water or air, or otherwise to render hazardous the use of any highway,
railway, waterway or aerodrome.

Reason: In the interests of amenity, highway safety and public safety, and to
comply with Regulation 13 of the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisement) Regulations 2007.



[P

1€0 - 689

00L:L 8eds

004:1L 3jeds

wosnoy soquny Sumesa pasodold Sy - ue|d 100| }sii4 - Buip|ing 92140 pasodold Sy - Ue|d 100|4 punois) - Buipjing 8210
vl ddy A7 00L:L
ara a2 sos
= =t
ONINNYId N ER ) omamvas )
om I ¥ANNG Y L
Qv TN v1d : 18!
INGY 3LIHOYY om T
S88YLY . { = S
60108 | A
F¥NLOILIHONUY J : ~
SANVP - - - _
e o4 ‘
2 _ | T
2 y
H
sue|d pasodold B Bunsix3 m e
8 /
ST bumEIq 3 ﬁ T
SV0 6N ‘UOPUOT ‘UojuNWpPT 'S yAuNOE o o
"aUE %001 SOOI L e epelbin [ = JF h M
3UIS UHON ERNEE a g Iy Lslslrel
Aynoed Jodeq moN — A
ostord W X €%
1 30140 ﬂ ONILSIX3 || $
1] suogesado ] .
YsueiL somoL O /2oMI0LS MilNL0d U e
e VoA ooy I = = o040 5 A
T =5 ‘
N <D
/30VHOLS WLN3LOA
o140 -
ST ;
‘‘‘‘‘ \ﬂ\‘\‘\‘\‘\‘\‘ﬂ\ e L i i dina i |
s301440
raovioLs MiiNaiod s ‘II,A Jao1
Fonvang
Nivn
SNowvooTIY sumoor
o etz 2
(@)) = P -
e SS3IN SHIANA
o ﬂ =fPODN
@© 001} 2[eds —
Q. pssodoid g Bunsixg - ue|d J00j4 PUNOIS) - 7 8SNOYSIBAN
1@
= | —
somoTE o
o1 B
S
‘U =)
ﬂ
5
B
8
5 00}:1 2[0S
=] = pasodo.d * bunsix3 - ue|d J00|4 punols) - g 8snoyalep)
/4 T el 0 0
S “)
= =
s
— = 0 o] il il

000 SILINNS 531108

Bunsix3 sy - Ue|d 100]4 Isii4 - Buipiing 2240

T

WO L't

301440

C

TEMELS

% TEmEIvLS
u

WooM
ssan

301340

S¥3#001

HOOIROO

om
(G3A3AHNS LON)

A

8801

!

301340

Bunsix3 sy - Ue|d 1004 punois - Buipiing 0140

301440

an

301440

§000 UILIAFS 53108

Jonoo

Ay
SNOLLYOOTIY

il




g

2€0 - 689

ooy soaunN Bumesq

1, 4dy A% 0oL}

g S sopeos

ONINNY1d

smieis Buweiq

FENLO3LIHOAY

SMNVP

suonens|3
pasodoud % Buiisixg
SMIL bumeiq
SV0 6N ‘UOpUOT ‘Uojunwp3
‘aUE 3007 SHEXOId LY

‘38 YHON

Aynoed Jodeq moN
paloig

JISue1] 18MOL

Rl
B Uoidioseq_uoishey

Page 91

001:1 dleas

pasodoid puy Buiisix3 sy - uoljeas|3 yinog

001:1 9leas

pasodoid puy Buisix3 sy - suoljens| jseg

004:1 3leds

pasodoid puy Buisix3 sy - UoieAs|3 YUoN

004:1L 3jess

pasodoid puy Bunsix3 sy - UoleAs|J 1SS

004:1 8less

pasodoid puy Buisix3 sy - uoijeas|J iseq

001:1 8eds

pasodoid puy Buisix3 sy - UoieAS|T 1SS

00}:1L 8jeos

pasodold puy Buisix3 sy - UOIEAS|T YInoS

001:1 8leds

pasodoid puy Bunsix3 sy - UoleAs|3 YUoN

V ISNOHIHVM

0011 8fedos
pasodoid Sy - UoieAs|3 1A

g ISNOHIEVM

001} 8€2S
pasodoid Sy - uoljeAs|3 yinos

/ Aiensed nopu moPea e Burscs

porcuwss 0a \

o) 8Beubis suaping. Buisia

00L:1L 8[ess

Bunsix3 sy - uoleAs|3 1S3

parowas
20 01 9BeuBIs suspIng, BuSH3

001:L 9leds

Bunsix3 sy - uoieAs|g yinog

IOVYNDIS

IOVNDIS

0011 8ledos
pasodold puy Buisix3 sy - uonjeas|3 jse3

001:} 3|eds

pasodold puy Bunsix3 sy - uoljeAs|3 yuoN

NOILYAOWINODJV 301440



[P

ooy £607689 PR
vhady v 0giookik
ONINNYd J—

Qv TV¥NLO3LIHOYY Qe NOISINE3dNS ONINNY1d

AINIWIOVYNYIN LOIrO¥d NOIS3A TYINLOILIHOYY
yn'00"aInjosjyolesnUei@oul jlew-3
G88¥CY 72210 Xed ¥88vCY 7210 1AL
16,0108 “PiojpeIg ‘aIp| ‘Pe0y PiojpeIg €8 'OIpNIS Aemale

FENLO3LIHOAY

SMNVP

sjiela@ pasodold

3L buweIq

SV0 6N ‘UOpUOT ‘Uuojunwp3
‘aueT %007 sHSId Ly

‘a1S YLON

Aypoey jodag maN

aloig
P17 suopesadg
JISuel] 18MO|

B Uoidioseq_uoishey

Page 92

001} 8less

sue] [en4 pasodoid

00L:L 8e3S
u8alI0g ysepn pasodoid

ispeoads Aq ubisep oy slans | e — St
“UB8ID YSNg AlIoH :N0jD Jewilid (2102 W) Aeu sielS Jnoj)
uo Jujed ofSELUNNG YIM PaYSIULS 2 - 2N sl is pessaud 8q 0L
B W 099'¢ X 2pim m ° '$808} L10q 0} AaJ9) BUIMES00D)
W 05721 8718 uey nojo wefeninba Jo siog Aq eI
‘TOREIITS BT o o 00ZSdH US4 My D00LS) Uedsuny
B fR4-pd bbb L L LR L g orew o ajjosd fepiozades sqoL.
ureyd pooy onoe g 8 SURPED)
o 10100 o 130 51905 0
s uppelo pesuened
101 wi099E AQ opIm WIO0E Aq 1 L SULUNIOD (9915 PaSIVEARD
“jue) aBeio)s fany puncib anoge 1 “seouassjeid
eBusies popune A1 oA 00001 1 [rpep——
U S oo e
RIS s . ‘PaIfEISUl 2 0} SUSBIS Us
o e
NOILVOIIO3dS oor w5 w05 5w aoss o0 NOILVOIFI03dS
05°| sleag 001’1 8edS

J18)2ys buyjjen4 pasodoid

NOILVAZT3 HLNOS

SUOI}eAS|T SSB\ SIBUES|D USBAA

NOILVA3T3 1SV3

(05141 enag e s B
“““ o) o i pist

05ye) o ek i

sosusdsia
oniapy

08's

NOILVATTI HLION

(2102 Tl f219 syeIS 000 (01w psis

auerg nojd
leads sa0L
sioo0

(2102 Tval) 219 opeIs oo
‘SIun pazelb sjgNop peLey WnuILN[E 9q0L
SwOPU

so,sz;eo%mx&
5000 STEUIEA] AU

(2102 1) 219 @iels no0)
g Usiutj feels passaid adoL.
Soumsel

219 Buos009 n0jo usfennbe
10 81104 X udsBuD Ustul “BuppEP ysoduc
elyoud lepiozades i 0004 UdsBUy 3oL
o8

(dS Aq PapUSLC9) SB) Uleid poo) onoe.

soidsasai Bunsiz

‘paswe
oa1s paxue put

Buppep up
Styoud tum pero o 03 aijous

005E
‘ssea0ud Buylen; snq oyl
6uiinp sBees) Aue Joj ease jUBIIED

290 awey
BuppeR Iv

2ind UL ‘osis passax 051) monag oo o s 5
E (o) o ok pictd

o8ye) o ks o

J6us

NOILVOIJI03dS

ooy
° \
\
P —
o SR \
0 SUORoBLIC) W) NS Pasodaid |
o 1
0-— L‘l
—
: N o Pt o4 oot
\ - o \
S —
oo s
ysem snq pasodoud o} pajosuLIco N T e -
ol lcolti -
- |
n3
HNYL 3 |
- @asododd \
o

\ xa 1010 - 10
sodwee | . MNVL
\ Esmmmnw“;ﬂw%huﬁ q3s0dodd
—_—

pasodosd o} yBoy papaLCD

e s som o posodos 1 ONTEN —
peppeeessid | q3s0doud

o0 95 ,
bt
o S o 1 ,

LSV SN8 qasodoud -

sopwers

NOILYATT3 LS3IM

21 Bua5909 nojo) WIEAINbS 10 S1UoO
4G 51N 00ZSdH Usii3 BUPpEp Sis0dwed
elyoid [epiozaden Wi 0001 UedsBu 2oL
ST

NOILVOI4I03dS

00L:1 8B3S
JoRJIXJ BUET BIAISS - UB|d B)S

pdLodso-aLazon pue
10420916200 SOUNEID S mouIBU RTINS 3 N
2pg 595 sbeseip pasodoid pUE Busa o WAV I 103

Eiey




,._,,52
€0 - 689
— soqunn Bumei
1, 4dy A% 05 ‘0z'L
ae o somss
ONINNY1d

snuelo ew-3
¥88YCY ¥LC10 19L

FENLO3LIHOAY

SMNVP

05:} 3|eds

19)|3ys ajoAD pasodoid

s|leyo@ abeubis pue
20U84 211sNody pasodoid

05} deds

uoljoag Buioua4 Arepunog [eoidAL

150d 81 pUE GUISE9US 21810000 34 UsBMaq

hu paoeida aq o) ave suosOd 8L 1 PNOID
S10d5 Y0 '91210U03 GEON 3R 0

R

(AR ]
20U84 2l3sNo2dY pasodold

|
L bumeIq ¥ 7 . 3
. . b, b, NOLLYSIAVN 331 ¥3A i
SV0 6N ‘UOpUOT ‘UojuNWp3 —
‘3UET %007 WAl L
‘a)IS YUoN wwLiQG 1588 18 aNUYUCS 0} BUINIEC] JAqUIL
Aynoed Jodeq moN
walorg ssoduoamanporE | —
P17 suogesado oerd
JISuel] 18MO| L T —
U3 p 8
om0 g
s q uondudsaq e ‘Buippepo sjeucqueakiod U Buofe paflelsul [1eJ JSUNCD SIANOP JSquIlL
Sty
] 1504 pue vy
o0 nwesd W3INIXE ros o oy B s Bt ot
NOILYOIdI03dS ho ki s |
5 o oqun o o s
. pricreleiyritesnertysmiv
= WejsAS seuseg dysnoxer Aunoes suosyoer f
reion L L
Aq pesiApe pue papuBLLIOoS SE (ZLOZ'Z
Bl tdrimyreiytotid e
6 Jepun zg Aobejen isee) je)
v Kepunc Suisna
sz
DI 0zZ:| 8|eag 0z} olesg 0zZ:| 8|eag 05°1 3[eds
Jalueg spIya pasodoid uoljena|3 apig [eoaidA] - abeubig pasodoid uoljeAa|3 juol4 [eoidA] - abeubig pasodold ue|d uoijeooT - abeubig pasodoid
Y XF@ S~ UoaS B3AL T —— \)/
—
S anorsws ssesss mseratnon
~
S —
o 55055 oot oy 55 o e
% CH \ N7 KN N - - \ pryonpetiimtchiptydaid
e [r—— et 1
f f
-
7 [y —d ) o
B 109IS pasueNED B0 WilieZ ONZ N I 2
- |
—
ot o v P
fona) Jepwod 8q o} Aesy UBIS Wty « ~— 285 'aBeuBls Bunsixe adeide o} sisod
[r——— M [Piribecmivbebiatnciiionit
s o eSS Ry ;
ot posAs 80 ot ong o pue s
o PoroLe1 541 50d e oBRUD B
opdid__/]
" e e s sopain NE
1Wied MOl A 3 ¥0BIE - Usiuld poride R e e L £ . ‘8ous; gpunoq Bugsa
Lt o0 Ueld s pasodoid Lo umoys. 8 )
o’ e Elohend conaacul Jopod a4 01 AasL UBS Wiy g 5 1LISNVHL g .
q jesis Buruds B S / ‘panowas
P — _
1BUS| HOLEXA08X 10081 N
oyt o
‘welsAg |1ey Jelweg ojaxeld T o
NOILVOIE03dS =] =]

EVE ALZHVS



[P

§€0 - 689

— squny Buneia
vhady v 0004} s
wZ_ZZ(‘_l smeis Buweiq

Qv v,
LN3N3OV

LIHOYY g NOISINY3dNS ONINNY1d

NLO3LIHOYY

5887
r6 018 PA

SMNVP A‘

sweibeiq Buiyied
pasodoid

3L bumeiq

SV0 6N ‘UOpuoT ‘Uojunwp3
‘aue %007 spAOId Ly
‘YIS YHON

Aypoe4 yodag moN
aloig

oL
Kemaje

JISue1] 18MOL

sy
B oidioseq_uoisiey

Page 94

soup o

waip au g penss!

3LON

¥ 9ABAA INO-UNY

s oy Buewue sesna jo jequN - — 15 o1 Buialus 120 Jo JoQUIN - — — —

s o Buaua 120 0 Joqu - — —

= T e ———
1S Uy BuRIUB 5351 J0 JOQUAN = — e

11 8y Busius sesnqjoJaquiny - — =

‘315 Uo Jeymasio ppinoid 5| Bunyied 83440 aIEIPEA




	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE PLANNING PANEL - CHASE FARM HOSPITAL SITE
	4 REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING, HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION  (REPORT NO. 165)
	5 14/04795/FUL - 1246 MOLLISON AVENUE, ENFIELD, EN3 7NJ
	6 14/02646/RE4 - DERBY ROAD, OFF KENNINGHALL ROAD, LONDON, N18 2PA
	7 14/04449/FUL - 20-22 GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 6HT
	8 14/04222/HOU - 46 OLD PARK VIEW, ENFIELD, EN2  7EJ
	9 14/03614/FUL - LAND ADJACENT TO 2 THE MALL, LONDON, N13 4AU.
	10 P14-01733/PLA & P14-01735/ADV - 41 PICKETTS LOCK LANE, LONDON, N9 0AS.

